Scientific Report for the Year 1997

Vienna, ESI-Report 1997

February 5, 1998

Supported by Federal Ministry of Science and Transport, Austria Available via anonymous ftp or gopher from FTP.ESI.AC.AT, URL: http://www.esi.ac.at/

ERWIN SCHRÖDINGER INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF MATHEMATICAL PHYSICS, SCIENTIFIC REPORT FOR THE YEAR 1997

ESI, Boltzmanngasse 9, A-1090 Wien, Austria

February 5, 1998

President: Walter Thirring, Tel. +43-1-3172047-15. Email: fwagner@pap.univie.ac.at.
Director: Peter W. Michor: +43-1-3172047-16. Peter.Michor@esi.ac.at
Deputy Director: Jakob Yngvason: +43-1-31367-3406. yngvason@thor.thp.univie.ac.at
Administration: Lilla Hartyani, Anna Maria Ojeda
Computer group: Andreas Cap, Hermann Schichl.
International Scientific Advisory board: Jean-Pierre Bourguignon (Paris), Krzysztof Gawedzki (Paris),
Elliott Lieb (Princeton),
Vaughan Jones (Berkeley),
Alexander Kirillov (Pennsylvania),
Othmar Loos (Innsbruck),
Domokos Szasz (Budapest),
Klaus Schmidt (Wien).

ESI preprints and newsletters are available via 'anonymous ftp' or 'gopher': FTP.ESI.AC.AT and via the URL: http://www.esi.ac.at.

Table of contents

General remarks	. 2
Winter School in Geometry and Physics	. 2
Conference: Formal power series and algebraic combinatorics 97	. 3
PROGRAMS IN 1997	. 4
Ergodic theory and dynamical systems	. 4
Program on Mathematical Relativity	. 6
Spaces of geodesics and complex structures in general relativity and differential geometry	7 7
Local Quantum Physics	. 9
Nonlinear theory of generalized functions	. 13
Programs of 1996	. 15
Guests via Director's shares	. 15
List of Preprints	. 16
List of seminars and colloquia	. 30
List of all visitors in the year 1997	. 33

Typeset by $\mathcal{A}_{\!\mathcal{M}}\!\mathcal{S}\text{-}T_{\!E}\!X$

Impressum: Eigentümer, Verleger, Herausgeber: Erwin Schrödinger International Institute of Mathematical Physics. Offenlegung nach §25 Mediengesetz: Verlags- und Herstellungsort: Wien, Ziel der Zeitung: Wissenschaftliche Information, Redaktion: Peter W. Michor

General remarks

In the year 1997 ESI was host to 293 visitors. There were 106 preprints contributed to the preprint series (116 till beginning of February), some of them still belong to programs from 1996, and 162 seminar talks or ESI-Colloquia were given. Three conferences were organized in Vienna:

- (1) Conference in ergodic theory, geometry and arithmetic. This was part of the program on ergodic theory and will be reported on there.
- (2) Formal power series and algebraic combinatorics 97
- (3) Workshop in local quantum physics. This was part of the program on local quantum physics and details are given in the report on the program.

ESI took part in the organization of one conferences abroad, 'The 18th Winter school on geometry and physics', January 10–17, 1998, in Srni, a small village in the Bohemian forest, Czech republic.

ESI has spent AS 3,78 Mio for science which was supplemented by AS 1.12 Mio of foreign support; AS 5,92 Mio were spent for administrative costs including some open bills for the adapting the new premises.

Winter School in Geometry and Physics

The traditional winter school in geometry and physics which takes places for one week each January since 1980 in a picturesque village in the Czech parts of the Bohemian mountains is a joint enterprise of the Czech society of mathematicians and physicists and ESI, from 1994 onwards. Usually there are proceedings, which are published as a supplement of the 'Rendiconti Matematici di Palermo'.

In this year, the 17th Winter school on Geometry and Physics took place in the week January 11–18, 1997. ESI has contributed AS 10.000.– The former conferences with ESI-participation are published in the proceedings volumes:

The proceedings of the Winter school 'Geometry and Physics', Srní, January 1994. Suppl. Rend. Circ. Mat. Palermo, II. Ser. **39** (1996), 9–148 Contents:

J. Huebschmann: Poisson geometry of certain moduli spaces
A. Biś: Geometrical directions and ends of a manifold, points of accumulation of a direction of a group in the
hyperbolic space H^2
A. Cap, H. Schichl: Characteristic classes for A-bundles
M. Doupovec, A. Vondra: Some natural operations between connections on fibred manifolds
J. Korbaş, P. Zvengrowski: On sectioning tangent bundles and other vector bundles
W.M. Mikulski: Natural operator s lifting vector fields on manifolds to the bundles of covelocities 105
J. Rogowski: Some integral formulas for a Riemannian 3-mqanifold equipped with a system of orthogonal foli-
ations
J. Slovák: The principal prolongation of first order G -structures $\ldots \ldots \ldots$
V. Studeny: General Nijenhuis tensor, an example of a secondary invariant
M. Znojil: Circular vectors and toroidal matrices
The proceedings of the 15th Winter school 'Geometry and Physics', Srní, January 14–21, 1995. Suppl. Rend. Circ. Mat. Palermo, II. Ser. 43 (1996), 9–228 Contents:
V.K. Dobrev: q-difference conformal invariant operators and equations
M. Eastwood: Notes on conformal differential geometry
L. Mason: Twistor theory, self-duality and integrability
P.M. Akhmetiev: A high-order helicity invariant and the Rokhlin theorem
A. Cap, J. Slovak: On local flatness of manifolds with AHS-structures
J. Eichhorn, J. Fricke, A. Lang: Metrics conformally equivalent to bounded geometry
M. Doupovec, J.Kurek: Liftings of convariant $(0, 2)$ -tensor fields to the bundle of K-dimensional 1-velocities
111
C. Gross: Cohomology and connections on S^1 -bundles $\ldots \ldots \ldots$
J. Hruby: On the Q -deformed Heisenberg uncertainty relations and discrete time $\ldots \ldots \ldots$
J. Janyska: Natural symplectic structures on the tangent bundle of a space-time $\ . \ . \ . \ . \ . \ . \ . \ . \ . \ $
I. Kolar, G. Virsik: Connections in first principal prolongations
L. Kozma: On Finsler-Weyl manifolds amd connections

M. Kures: Natural lifts of classical linear connections to the cotangent bundle	181
M. Luedde: Yang-Baxter deformations of complex simple Lie algebras	189
W.M. Mikulski: Natural operators lifting functions to cotangent bundles of linear higher order tangent bun	1-
dles	199
J. Sobczyk: Quantum deformation of relativistic supersymmetry	207
A. Vanzurova: Special connections on smooth 3-web manifolds	217

The proceedings of the 16th Winter school 'Geometry and Physics', Srni, January 13–20, 1996. Suppl. Rend. Circ. Mat. Palermo, II. Ser. 46 (1997), 9–176

Contents:
K. Beidar, Y. Fong, A. Stolin: Symmtric algebras and Yang-Baxter equation
T. Branson: Spectral theory of invariant operators, sharp inequalities, and representation theory 29
M. Eastwood: Complex methods in real integral geometry
V.K. Dobrev, P. Moylan: Singleton representations of $U_q(\mathfrak{so}(3,1))$
V.K. Doupovec, J. Kurek: Natural operations of Hamiltonian type on the contangent bundle
C. Gross: Equivariant cohomology of the Skyrmion bundle
F. Hinterleitner: Local and global aspects of separating coordinates for the Klein-Gordon equation 97
M. Kraus: BRS-Transformations in a finite dimensional setting
M. Lüdde: A unified construction of the Alexander- and the Jones-invariant
J. Mikeš, G.A. Starko / K-concircular vector fields and holomorphically projective mappings on Kählerian
spaces $\dots \dots \dots$
J. Rataj: The iterated version of a translative integral formula for sets of positive reach
T. Rybicki: On admissible groups of diffeomorphisms
A. Schmitt: Existence of Skyrmions
T. Schmitt: Symplectic solution supermanifolds in field theory
P. Tiller: The approximate symmetries of vacuum Einstein equations
A. Vanžurová: Connections for non-holonomic 3-webs

Conference: Formal power series and algebraic combinatorics 97

The 9th conference of this series of organized by Christian Krattenthaler at the University of Vienna, July 14–18, 1997. ESI has contributed 50.000.- to this conference. The proceeding will be published as a special volume in 'Discrete Mathematics'.

Lectures given:

Sergei Abramov: Solutions of linear differential equations in the class of sparse power series

Martin Aigner: Geometric representations of graphs and the four-color theorem

Eric BABSON, Anders BJÖRNER, Svante LINUSSON, John SHARESHIAN*, and Volkmar Welker: Complexes of not i-connected graphs

Frédérique Bassino: Distributions de longeurs des codes circulaires

Nantel BERGERON and Frank Sottile*: Identities of structure constants for Schubert polynomials and orders on S_n

Miklos Bona: P-recursiveness for pattern avoidance

Jonathan Borwein: Three adventures: Symbolically discovered identities for $\zeta(4n+3)$ and like matters

Richard Brak: Osculating lattice paths and alternating sign matrices

Will BROCKMAN^{*} and Mark Haiman: Nilpotent orbit varieties and the atomic decomposition of the *q*-Kostka polynomials

E. Rodney CANFIELD, Sylvie CORTEEL* and Carla D. Savage: Durfee polynomials

Christophe CARRÉ and Sébastien Veigneau^{*}: HUB, un concentrateur de ressources distribuées en combinatoire algébrique

Carol Chang: The n! conjecture and an algebraic vector bundle on the Hilbert scheme of n points in the plane Frédéric Chyzak: An extension of Zeilberger's fast algorithm to general holonomic functions

Mihai Ciucu: No feedback card guessing for dovetail shuffles

Robert CORI, B. JACQUARD and Gilles Schaeffer*: Description trees for some families of planar maps

Vesselin Gasharov: Green and Gotzmann theorems for polynomial rings with restricted powers of the variables Tom HALVERSON*, Robert LEDUC and Arun Ram: Iwahori-Hecke algebras of type A, bitraces and symmetric functions

Philippe JACQUET^{*} and Wojciech Szpankowski: Analytical depoissonization and its applications to combinatorics and analysis of algorithms

Anatol N. KIRILLOV and Toshiaki Maeno^{*}: Quantum double Schubert polynomials, quantum Schubert polynomials and Vafa-Intriligator formula

Ulrich KORTENKAMP and Jürgen Richter-Gebert*: Cinderella's Café — Interactive geometry on your computer Daniel KROB* and Jean-Yves Thibon: A crystalizable version of $U_q(gl_N)$

Sévéverine Leidwanger: A relation between Schur P- and S-functions

Cristian Lenart: Symmetric functions, formal group laws, and Lazard's theorem

Nicolas MAGOT and Alexander Zvonkin*: Belyi functions for Archimedian solids

David K. Maslen: The computation of Fourier transforms on the symmetric group

Michel Mendes-France: The ultra divergent series $\sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \frac{1}{0^{2^n}}$

Stephen C. Milne: New infinite families of exact sums of squares formulas, Jacobi elliptic functions, and Ramanujan's tau function

Jean-Christophe Novelli: On the hypoplactic monoid

Andrei Okounkov: Binomial formula for Macdonald polynomials and applications

Yuval Roichman: Murnaghan-Nakayama and Littlewood-Richardson type rules for Kazhdan-Lusztig representations of Coxeter groups

Abdus Salam: Using the software EBENMASS for the symmetric groups and symmetric functions

Bruno Salvy: The combinatorics library of the project 'algorithms' at INRIA

Rodica Simion: Noncrossing partitions

Sheila Sundaram: Homotopy and homology of non-modular partitions and related posets Brian Taylor: Straightening laws for row-convex tableaux

PROGRAMS IN 1997

Ergodic theory and dynamical systems

Organized by A. Katok, K. Schmidt, G. Margulis, January 1 – August 30. 10 Preprints contributed: [424], [425], [428], [433], [439], [484], [494], [497], [503], [519], Money spent: AS 994.748.- (ESI), AS 549.928.- (foreign)

This program was devoted to the study of Dynamical Systems, with special emphasis on multidimensional dynamics and the new phenomena encountered there, as well as on the interaction between Dynamical Systems and Number Theory, Geometry and Statistical Mechanics.

The program started in January 1997 with a series of lectures by D. Rudolph on Entropy theory and restricted orbit equivalence for discrete amenable group actions, in which he presented recent joint work with J. Kammeyer on entropy as a complete invariant of (suitably) restricted orbit equivalence. K. Park lectured on her work on Subdynamics of \mathbb{Z}^d -actions, J.-P. Thouvenot and E. Glasner presented results on the Pinsker algebra of product actions and joinings, and Ya. Pesin gave two lectures on Spatio-temporal chaos in coupled map lattices (a class of \mathbb{Z}^2 actions arising in statistical mechanics). Amongst the topics of further lectures in January were Notions of complexity of dynamical systems (S. Ferenczi) and Recent progress in billiards (A. Stepin). Lectures by A. Katok on Conjugacy rigidity of hyperbolic maps with sufficiently large commutants and K. Schmidt on Homoclinic points and Markov partitions of algebraic \mathbb{Z}^d -actions served as an introduction to one of the main topics of the February Conference on Ergodic Theory, Geometry and Arithmetic: the rigidity properties of higher rank abelian group actions.

February was dominated by the two-week **Conference on Ergodic Theory, Geometry** and Arithmetic, February 3-14, 1997, organised by A. Katok and G. Margulis. The main theme of this very intensive meeting was the comparison of 'arithmetical' rigidity properties of actions of 'large' groups, like Kazhdan groups, and the 'geometrical' rigidity properties appearing in actions of higher-rank abelian groups, like \mathbb{R}^d and \mathbb{Z}^d , or, for example, in the geometric structure at infinity of Riemannian manifolds of negative and non-positive curvature.

In addition to almost thirty research talks (listed below) there were five major survey lecture series:

- (1) Eskin, Kleinbock, Margulis, and Shah gave six lectures on flows on homogeneous spaces and number theory, in which they presented connections between arithmetical results connected with the Raghunathan conjecture and its solution, and striking new results on diophantine approximation and related questions.
- (2) Katok and Schmidt gabe a series of four lectures on actions of higher-rank abelian groups and rigidity, in which they presented a variety of rigidity results (such as cohomological rigidity, isomorphism rigidity, perturbation rigidity and scarcity of invariant measures) for geometric and algebraic actions of \mathbb{Z}^d and \mathbb{R}^d with $d \geq 2$.
- (3) Burger and Mozes gave three lectures on lattices in the automorphism group of a product of trees in which they presented new results and examples both in the theory of infinite groups and in multidimensional shifts of finite type.

(4) Besson and Courtois described their landmark results on the geometry of manifolds with geodesic flows of minimal entropy in three lectures.

ESI

(5) Feres gave three lectures on topological superrigidity which centered around his joint work with Labourie on cocycle superrigidity in the absence of invariant measures.

The conference was attended by most of the active reasearchers in the subject, both at senior and at junior level.

After mid-February things quietened down a little. G. Margulis and A. Katok gave surveys of *Flows on homogeneous spaces and Diophantine approximation on manifolds* and *Hyperbolic measures*, respectively, M. Lemanczyk presented current work on *Gaussian processes*, and T. Ward gave an account of recent work on *S-integer dynamical systems* which again show a remarkable interplay between arithmetic and dynamics. One should also mention C. Radin's visit in May, during which he spoke on the symmetry properties of some of the remarkable planar tilings he and others have constructed. Research on *Voronoi tilings* was presented by N. Priebe.

With the beginning of June the number of visitors increased again and the emphasis of the programme shifted towards symbolic dynamics. Although the classification of automorphisms and homomorphisms of shifts of finite type is part of mainstream symbolic dynamics, any such classification sheds light on the multidimansional shifts of finite type generated by the shift and suitable shift-commuting automorphisms. Here the main result presented during this part of the conference was the *Counterexample to the Williams conjecture* due to Kim and Roush, which was investigated in detail and subsequently described in a series of lectures by M. Boyle. S. Tuncel presented new results on the *Classification of Markov endomorphisms*, which were joint work with B. Marcus.

Amongst many further results connected with symbolic \mathbb{Z}^d -actions one should list D. Lind's lecture on *Milnor's entropy geometry and algebraic* \mathbb{Z}^d -actions, J. Steif's investigation of *Higher*dimensional T, T^{-1} -systems, in which he proved Bernoullicity of varying degrees (depending on the dimension) in dimension ≥ 3 , B. Kamiński's study of *Invariant sigma-algebras of multi*dimensional processes and E.A. Robinson's lecture on *The Krieger representation theorem for* a class of multidimensional shifts of finite type.

A number of visitors to the program worked on and presented results in areas of Dynamics not specifically related to multiparameter ergodic theory. M. Keane gave a beautiful elementary proof of *Birkhoff's classical ergodic theorem*, V.F.R. Jones spoke on *Planar algebras*, which have some very intriguing connections with Wang tiles (hence with two-dimensional shifts of finite type) and Bratteli diagrams (hence with interval exchange transformations), there were two lectures on the general concept of *Randomness* (by V. Sós and K. Petersen), J. Feldman and M. Smorodinsky presented new results on *Standard and nonstandard processes* (a problem connected with the classification of dcreasing families of sigma-algebras), and Y. Kifer explained work on *Computations in chaotic dynamics via random perturbations*. Two participants investigated noncommutative dynamical systems (S. Bezuglyi and T. Hamachi), and S. Williams and D. Silver worked on *Applications of Symbolic Dynamics to Knot Theory*. A number of visitors studied dynamical properties of arithmetical expansions (Aaronson, Johnson, Nakada, Shelton, Yuri), or formal languages (D. Fiebig, U. Fiebig and W. Krieger).

This list of research topics and lectures is far from exhaustive, but should give an indication of the direction and breadth of the program. A further feature of the program was the exceptionally high financial contribution to the program from outside sources, including USD 3000.– from the Dynamical Systems Research Center at Penn State University for additional support of postdocs.

A. Katok, K. Schmidt

Further talks in the Conference in ergodic theory, geometry and arithmetic.

M.Ya.Antonovskii: 1965 School in Ergodic Theory at Humsan, Uzbekistan. Reflections and recollections of the organizer.

- A.Katok: Ergodic theory from Humsan to Vienna.
- H. Furstenberg: Stiffness of group actions
- G. Knieper: Volume growth and the distribution of closed geodesics in manifolds of nonpositive curvature.
- B.Leeb: Groups quasi-isometric to symmetric spaces.
- B.Farb: Quasi-isometry and rigidity: latices and beyond.
- E.Ghys (ENS-Lyon): Smooth linearizations of SL(n) actions around a fixed point
- I.Benoist (Paris VII): Linear groups with positive eigenvalues

G.Tomanov (U.Lyon): On the quadratic and unitary inequalities in the S-adic case.

P.Foulon (Strasbourg): Dynamical rigidity in Finsler geometry.

V.Kaimanovich (Rennes): Singularity of the harmonic measure on symmetric spaces.

H. Abels (Bielefeld): A quantitative version of finite generatedness for lattices.

W.Ballmann (Bonn): Property T for groups acting on complexes.

U.Hamenstaedt (Bonn): Cocycles, cross-ratios and eigenfunctions in negative curvature.

F. Grunewald (Dusseldorf): On ternary quadratic forms.

P de la Harpe (Geneva): Growth on root lattices and Ehrhart polynomials.

I.Goldsheid (London): Zariski dense semi-groups of Lie groups: propertoes of eigenvalues and invariant sets.

A.Starkov (Istra): Closures of horospherical leaves on hyperbolic manifolds

G.Soifer (Bar-Ilan): Discontinuous groups of affine transformations with orthogonal linear part

 $\operatorname{S.Katok}$ (Penn State): Automorphic forms of the complex hyperbolic space

S.Hurder (Illinois-Chicago): Boundary Chaos for open manifolds

S.Adams (Minnesota): Dynamics on Lorentz manifolds.

C-B.Yue (Penn State): On the representation variety of complex hyperbolic Kleinian groups.

Y. Gao (Yale): Superrigidity for isometric group actions on CAT(-1) spaces

A.Torok (Princeton): Regularity and rigidity of cocycles

V.Nitica (Indiana): Cocycles over Anosov actions.

N.Qian (Yale): Tangential flatness and local rigidity of higher rank lattice actions.

A.Wilkinson (Norstwestern): Prevalence of non-Lipschitz Anosov foliations and conjugacies.

E.Gutkin (USC): Polygonal billiards and cofinite lattices.

Program on Mathematical Relativity

Organized by B. Beig, ESI, 1.1.–30.6.1997.

6 Preprints contributed: [467], [460], [475], [507], [515], [524]

Money spent: AS 391.000.- (ESI), AS 4.000.- (foreign).

The work in this program was devoted to the study of analytical and geometrical problems related to - mostly classical - aspects of the Einstein Equations (EE's).

V.Moncrief worked out higher order energies of the so-called Bel- Robinson type which play a crucial role in global existence proofs for the Vacuum Einstein Equations (VEE's). These calculations are part of a long-term project, with L.Andersson, on solutions of the VEE's on manifolds of the form M x R, with M a compact hyperbolic space. The aim is to prove stability of the flat solutions of this form, obtained as a certain quotient of (the interior light cone of a point of) Minkowski space. Such a result would be a cosmological analogue of the celebrated theorem, due to Christodoulou and Klainerman, on the nonlinear stability of Minkowski space.

A.Fischer and V.Moncrief continued their collaboration on ADM reduction. They proved that the only critical points of the reduced Hamiltonian (on compact manifolds of negative Yamabe type) are Cauchy data for the expanding, flat hyperbolic models from above.

V.Moncrief and J.Nelson continued work involving the quantized 2+1- EE's (with a cosmological constant) on T x R, with T a 2-torus.

R.Beig and N.O'Murchadha studied the maximal slicing of the extended Schwarzschild spacetime. They gave rigorous estimates of the decay of the lapse function as the last maximal slice is approached.

E.Malec and N.O'Murchadha worked on the spherically symmetric Einstein-Massless Scalar Field system. In particular they found rigorous estimates for the influence of the phenomenon of backscattering on the intensity of the outgoing radiation.

R.Beig and L.Szabados found a conformal invariant of initial data sets on compact 3manifolds. This invariant, in the special case of totally geodesic initial data sets, reduces to the one of Chern and Simons. The behaviour of this invariant under evolution of initial data sets by the EVE's will be studied in the future.

R.Beig and B.Schmidt looked at some open issues in the asymptotic structure of stationary vacuum spacetimes. Their results will form a part of a review article on stationary spacetimes they are in the process of writing.

There was a lively interaction among participants of the workshop and, moreover, with the participants of the parallel program on CR structures, organized by L.Mason, P.Nurowski and H.Urbantke.

Spaces of geodesics and complex structures in general relativity and differential geometry

Organized by Lionel Mason,, Pawel Nurowski, Helmuth Urbantke. March, April and June, July 1997.

17 Preprints contributed: [432], [434], [451], [461], [464], [470], [471], [477], [486], [487], [493], [505], [516], [518], [520]; [521], [522].

Money spent: AS 518.500.-(ESI).

Characterisation of the progress. The program consisted of two interrelated parts. The first focussed on application of spaces of null geodesics to general relativity and second to problems in differential geometry.

1) Particular attention was paid to analytic subtleties associated with the Robinson theorem. The theorem in its original version says, in particular, that if a space-time \mathcal{M} admits a congruence of shear-free and null geodesics k then there exists a null Maxwell field associated with k in \mathcal{M} . Discussing this T. Bailey, D. Hill, L. Mason, P. Nurowski, I. Robinson, G. Sparling, J. Tafel, A. Trautman, H. Urbantke found examples of nonanalytic but smooth congruences of shear-free and null geodesics which do not admit any solution to the Maxwell equations for the associated null 2-form. This means that the Robinson theorem as quoted above needs some additional assumptions (e.g. analyticty or realizability) as conjectured by Tafel in 1985. Our examples are based on the relation between congruences of null geodesics and 3-dimensional CR-manifolds associated with them. The main arguments in the construction of the examples are as follows.

a) Suppose we have a shear-free congruence of null geodesics in space-time, such that its associated CR-structure admits a nonconstant solution to the tangential CR-equation. Then there exists a null Maxwell field associated with the congruence if and only if there exists a second independent solution to the tangential CR-equation.

b) Given a three-dimensional CR-manifold Q with a smooth CR-structure it is straightforward to associate with it a 4-dimensional Lorentzian manifold (space-time) in which there exists a smooth congruence of shear-free and null geodesics which has Q as its CR-manifold.

c) Rosay constructed smooth CR-structures on 3-manifolds that admit only one nonconstant solution to the tangential CR-equation.

Combining a), b) and c) we conclude that any of Rosay's CR-structures give rise to a congruence of shear-free and null geodesics in a space-time which does not admit an associated null Maxwell field.

The following related problem was not solved: Suppose that we have a congruence whose corresponding CR-structure does not admit any nonconstant solution to the tangential CR-equation. Is it possible to associate a null Maxwell field to such a congruence? Since the situation is even worse than in the case a) it is very likely that the answer is no - but the participants were unable to prove it. This is the only other alternative to the case discussed above and the realizable case for which Robinson's theorem can be seen to work in a straightforwardly.

A. Trautman summarizes the above in the following **conjecture**: A congruence of shear-free and null geodesics in space-time defines a null Maxwell field if and only if its associated CR-manifold is locally embeddable in \mathbb{C}^2 .

There were also discussions concerning the problem of an existence of nonanalytic congruences in Minkowski space-time. Although there were lively discussions between D. Hill, G. Sparling, J. Tafel and H. Urbantke, the issue was not resolved.

This part of the activity was concluded by a series of lectures by G. Sparling on CR-structures in physics.

2) Algebraically special space-times naturally fitted to the project since, due to the Goldberg-Sachs theorem, these are the only Einstein space-times that admit congruences of shear-free and null geodeiscs. L. Mason and J. Tafel presented two views on global properties of such space-times. Mason proved that the only algebraically special space-time which is assymptotically simple is Minkowski space. A paper by J. Tafel and S. Pukas is in preparation and one by L. Mason has already been submitted as an ESI preprint and will appear in Classical and Quantum Gravity.

Global properties of space-times were also discussed by J. Beem, who pointed out that horizons may not be differentiable, and that such pathologies can exist even on dense subsets of the horizon.

A different problem was discussed by R. Low who studied singularities of wave fronts. It relates to the work of E.T. Newman and S. Frittelli who encountered such problems in their Null Surface Formulation of General Relativity.

L. Szabados gave a review of definitions of gravitational energy and J. Frauendiener derived an integral formula on hypersurfaces in space-time that unifies integral form of Raychauduri equation for null congruences and Bondi mass loss formula. They were collaborating with the participants of the parallel workshop organized by R. Beig. Also P. Tod used this opprtunity in preparation of his review of Mathematical Relativity.

3) Reformulations of the 4-dimensional Einstein equations in the spirit of twistor theory were discussed. The persons involved in the discussions were: S. Fritelli, J. Lewandowski, L. Mason, T. Newman, P. Nurowski, R. Penrose, D. Robinson, G. Sparling, J. Tafel, P. Tod, A. Trautman, H. Urbantke.

The activity included a series of lectures by R. Penrose on twistors in curved space-times, followed by G. Sparling's lectures on his abstract twistor spaces for the Einstein (not anti-self-dual) space-times. In particular, Sparling (and Z. Perjes) constructed abstract twistor spaces for Einstein space-times with six symmetries (and for the Schwarzschild solution).

P. Nurowski developed formulation of the Einstein equations on the bundle of null rays over the space-time and its double branch cover. This formulation is based on an attachment of a (possibly degenerate) elliptic curve to each point of the space-time. In particular, the formulation gives a new view on the Petrov classification, since the degeneracies of the principal null directions at the space-time point correspond to the degeneracies of the elliptic curve attached to this point.

This formulation was compared with the Null Surface Formulation of General Relativity of T. Newman and his collaborators. A joint paper of Fritelli, Lewandowski, Newman and Nurowski about these relations is being prepared.

D. Robinson developed his chiral action formulation of the vacuum Einstein equations.

L. Mason and J-P. Nicolas completed their paper 'Global solutions of the Rarita-Schwinger equations and the Einstein equations' in which analytic results about the Rarita-Schwinger equations are proved and their connections with the Einstein equations are discussed. This was also lectured on by L. Mason and will be presented as an ESI preprint.

4) There were discussions on integrable systems. This relatively new field of applications of twistor theory had a strong representation during the workshop. The people involved were: J. Armstrong, M. Dunajski, L. Mason, P. Nurowski, M. Przanowski, G. Sparling, J. Tafel, P. Tod, N. Woodhouse.

M. Dunajski and L. Mason worked on their twistor construction of anti-self-dual hierarchies. M. Przanowski presented his joint work with J. Plebański which gave a differential equations aspect of the same problem.

In a series of lectures, M. Przanowski presented his results on algebraically special Einstein 4-manifolds with positive definite metric. The results were used by Nurowski and Przanowski to construct a 4-dimensional example of Ricci flat metric admitting almost-Kähler non-Kähler structure. The nonconstructive proof that such examples exist was presented by J. Armstrong. This is surprising in view of the result of K. Sekigawa who proves that under the assumption of compactness of the Einstein manifold every almost-Kähler structure is Kähler.

P. Tod presented his work on 4-dimensional Einsteinian D'Atri spaces, proving that they are locally symmetric. This was conjectured by Sekigawa and Vanhecke some time ago.

J. Tafel completed his joint work with D. Wójcik on null Killing vector reductions of the Yang-Mills equations in flat 4-manifold with metric of neutral signature.

5) P. Kobak and P. Nurowski worked on the Lorentzian counterpart of the twistorial construction of harmonic maps. The paper on this is being prepared in collaboration with M. Bobieński, and was discussed with P. Gauduchon, A. Trautman and S. Salamon.

Suggestions for future activity.

Not all the aims of the project were achieved. Some topics listed in the project description were not touched on at all, mainly because some of the invited guests could not come to ESI. On the other hand there are also topics which require further elaboration. These include (we list the topics with the associated persons in the proposal): non-analytic congruences in Minkowski space (Sparling, Tafel, Urbantke), global properties of algebraically special solutions (Mason, Tafel), relations between null surface formulation of GR and elliptic fibrations (Fritelli, Newman, Nurowski), twistor formulation of anti-self-dual hierarchies (Dunajski, Mason), Lorentzian counterpart of the twistorial harmonic maps construction (Nurowski, Kobak), Twistor approaches to the Einstein equations (Mason, Nicolas).

Lionel Mason, lmason@maths.ox.ac.uk

Pawel Nurowski, Pawel.Nurowski@fuw.edu.pl

Helmuth Urbantke, urbantke@galileo.thp.univie.ac.at.

Preprints contributed: 432, 434, 451, 461, 464, 470, 471, 477, 486, 487, 516, 518, 520, 521, 522.

Local Quantum Physics

Organized by D. Buchholz, H. Narnhofer, J. Yngvason, September 1 – December 31, 1998 11 Preprints contributed: [446], [448], [449], [469], [496], [498], [499], [501]; [525], [528], [529]. Money spent: AS 883.000.- (ESI), AS 435.000.- (foreign) Part of the program was the

Workshop on local quantum physics. September 29 - October 4, 1997

Lectures given:

R. Haag (Neuhaus/Schliersee): Objects, events and localization in quantum theory

- R. Stora (Annecy): Memories about renormalized perturbation theory
- K. Fredenhagen (Hamburg): Local (perturbative) construction of interacting fields on curved spacetime
- I. Ojima (Kyoto): Spontaneous collapse of supersymmetry
- H. W. Wiesbrock (Berlin): On modular theory and its application to physics
- J. Roberts (Rome): New directions in superselection theory
- O. Steinmann (Bielefeld): Particles as localized objects in quantum field theory
- S. Doplicher (Rome): On the C*-algebra of a Hilbert bimodule
- M. Müger (Rome): Superselection structure of massive quantum field theories in 1+1 dimensions
- K. H. Rehren (Hamburg): Statistics and modular theory of solitons
- H. J. Borchers (Göttingen): On the embedding of von Neumann algebras
- B. Schroer (Berlin): Modular localization, H-temperature and bootstrap formfactor program
- D. Guido (Rome): Superselection structure of conformal nets and applications to quantum field theories in curved spacetimes.
- S. Summers (Gainesville): Geometric modular action and spacetime symmetry groups
- M. Wollenberg (Leipzig): An inverse problem in modular theory
- E. Seiler (Munich): Continuum limits of spin models and local cohomology
- F. Strocchi (Pisa): Fermion boundary conditions and vacuum parameters
- N. Landsman (Cambridge): Theta-angles and anomalies in QFT
- G. Morchio (Pisa): Generalized Weyl systems
- U. Moschella (Como): De Sitter quantum field theory: Introduction and applications
- F. Bros (Saclay): Quantum field theory in de Sitter universe.
- B. S. Kay (York): Quantum fields in non globally hyperbolic spacetime
- H. Grosse (Vienna): Simple field theoretical models on non-commutative manifolds
- W. Junker (Potsdam): On a Euclidean approach to QFT on curved spacetimes
- R. Verch (Göttingen): On wavefront sets and algebraic quantum field theory
- R. Conti (Rome): On sectors with infinite statistics
- C. D'Antoni (Rome): Extension of antiautomorphisms and the PCT symmetry
- T. Matsui (Fukuoka): Classification of positive energy representations for massive lattice models
- K. Baumann (Göttingen): On bounded Bose fields in 1+1 dimensions commuting for space- and time-like distances

More than 30 experts for the structural analysis in relativistic quantum field theory participated in this 3 month project at ESI and worked together on about 5 different but interrelated topics. The program was centered about an intense one-week workshop to which further researchers were invited. Beside it between 2 and 4 more informal talks were delivered each week by participants on an ad hoc basis. The topics covered in this project range from the structural analysis of nets of local algebras through problems in the theory of superselection sectors and thermal quantum field theory to quantum field theory on curved spacetime. In spite of this diversity of problems there appears to be an almost universal mathematical tool for their treatment: modular theory. This intriguing fact was the leading theme in this project and its deeper understanding was one of the central goals. The results obtained provide further evidence to the effect that modular theory is a primary key to the understanding of local quantum physics. In the following an outline is given of the specific problems treated and results obtained by the participants of the project.

a) Modular theory, local algebras and spacetime symmetries. The relation between the modular operators appearing in quantum field theory, the lattice structure of local algebras of wedge-like regions and the and spacetime symmetries was discussed by by H.J. Borchers, D. Buchholz, D. Guido, B. Kuckert, H. Rehren, B. Schroer, S.J. Summers, S. Trebels, E.H. Wichmann and J. Yngvason.

H. Borchers worked on the question under which circumstances the modular groups associated with algebras of wedge–like regions coincide with the Poincaré transformations. Discussions with D. Buchholz, S. Summers and I. Todorov helped to isolate obstructions to this coincidence and led H.J. Borchers to a new characterization of theories with a unique representation of the Poincaré group. In another project H.J. Borchers and J. Yngvason investigated the structure of the modular groups which are associated with cone-like regions in representations induced by temperature states. For a class of chiral theories they were able to show that these groups still have an interpretation as (local) spacetime symmetries.

D. Buchholz and S.J. Summers continued during this project their investigation of the role of the modular conjugations in quantum field theory. Discussions with E.H. Wichmann led them to a more stringent formulation of their condition of geometric modular action which is designed to characterize preferred (vacuum like) states on a large class of spactime manifolds. The latter aspect of this work has triggered stimulating (partly controversial) discussions with J. Bros, K. Fredenhagen, B. Kay, U. Moschella and R. Verch. The results obtained so far seem to indicate that at least for spacetimes with a sufficiently big isometry group the aforementioned condition serves its purposes. These results will soon appear as ESI preprint.

B. Kuckert was able to improve his recent uniqueness theorem for modular symmetries by making use of a (yet unpublished) result of S. Trebels which he learned from the author during the workshop. H.J. Borchers, D. Guido and E.H. Wichmann were also involved in the discussions of this problem.

H. Rehren worked on modular theory in low-dimensional field- theoretic models, primarily for soliton sectors, and established an interpretation of the CPT and Spin-Statistics-Theorem in terms of the associated modular structures.

Finally, B. Schroer presented some intriguing ideas on the reconstruction of local algebras in interacting theories from free fields by introducing the notion of modular Møller operators. This novel approach to the so-called formfactor program seems to deserve a more detailed mathematical analysis.

b) Superselection structure and statistics. The second major topic of this project was the analysis of the superselection structure in case of quantum field theories which do not fit into the so-called DHR-setting, either because of the presence of long range effects or because of the structure of the underlying spacetime manifold. Various aspects of this circle of problems were treated by C.D'Antoni, D. Buchholz, S. Doplicher, D. Guido, G. Morchio, H. Rehren, J.E. Roberts, V. Schomerus, F. Strocchi, S.J. Summers, I. Todorov and R. Verch.

C.D'Antoni, S.J. Summers and R. Verch began a general study of the sector structure at short distances by using the method of the scaling algebra. There is some hope to establish criteria by which one can decide whether in a given theory charged sectors appear or disappear in the scaling limit (compare the confinement problem).

In a joint project D. Buchholz, S. Doplicher, G. Morchio, J.E. Roberts and F. Strocchi aimed at clarifying the localization properties of charged states in quantum electrodynamics. To this end an analysis of the classical Dirac-Maxwell theory, perturbative computations and a formal discussion in the indefinite metric formalism were carried out. The conclusion was that there is no obvious algebraic obstacle to localizing charged states on the algebra generated by the charge density and the magnetic field in a given Lorentz system. Since a mathematically satisfactory treatment of full quantum electrodynamics has not been accomplished yet, more rigorous results seem presently out of reach. But the above findings support an old conjecture of J. Fröhlich according to which the electric charge has better localization properties than normally assumed. The present findings seem to be the key to a general structural analysis of the charged superselection sectors in abelian gauge theories.

In a closely related project D. Buchholz, S. Doplicher and J.E. Roberts analyzed the question in which sense a particular type of charge is localized. They concluded that any charge has a canonical localizing net, i.e. a net on which it is localized. The size of this localizing net is then a measure of how well the charge in question can be localized. They also established conditions on the localizing net which allow one to generalize standard results from the theory of superselection sectors.

J.E. Roberts also worked with D. Guido, B.S. Kay and R. Verch on superselection sectors and the connection between spin and statistics in quantum field theories on curved spacetime.

Problems related to the superselection structure of theories in low dimension were treated by H. Rehren (cf. above) and in a collaboration of V. Schomerus and I. Todorov. The latter project concerns braid group properties and fusion rules for chiral WZNW models and relates the current work of V. Schomerus and A. Alekseev with earlier work of Y. Stanev and I. Todorov.

c) Thermal states. The rigorous structural analysis of thermal states in relativistic quantum field theory is receiving increasing attention in recent years and was also discussed by several participants of this project (H.J. Borchers, J.Bros, D. Buchholz, Ch. Jäkel, I. Ojima, J. Yngvason).

The work of H.J. Borchers and J. Yngvason on the geometrical significance of the modular structure in case of thermal states was already mentioned. One may expect that these results will stimulate further investigations of this unexpected feature of thermal states.

The concept of "Goldstone particle" in thermal quantum field theory was studied by J. Bros and D. Buchholz. It was recognized that the decrease properties (in spatial variables) of the so-called damping factor in a Källèn-Lehmann type representation of thermal current-field correlation functions is strongly correlated with the possible occurrence of a Goldstone particle in the thermal bath. This observation may be the key to a more satisfactory understanding of the spectral implications of the spontaneous breakdown of symmetries in thermal states.

The general mathematical structure of thermal states in relativistic quantum field theory was studied by Ch. Jäkel. Discussions with J. Bros, D. Buchholz, I. Ojima and J. Yngvason helped to clarify various technical points which appeared in this analysis. It seems that prominent features of the vacuum sector, such as the Reeh-Schlieder and the split property can also be established in thermal states.

The physical role of the center variables in thermal and vacuum states has been the research topic of I. Ojima who worked on the relation between the nature of the fluctuations of order fields, low energy theorems and the large deviation principle. Discussions with D. Buchholz, S. Doplicher, N. Landsman and J.E. Roberts lead to the clarification of certain group theoretic aspects of the problem which are related to the partial spontaneous breakdown of symmetries.

d) Quantum field theory on curved spacetime. Recently there has been much progress in the characterization of elementary physical states on curved spacetime manifold and a substantial part of this project was devoted to this topic. The following participants were actively involved in these discussions: H.J. Borchers, J. Bros, D. Buchholz, S. Doplicher, H. Fredenhagen, B. Kay, U. Moschella, S.J. Summers, R. Verch.

J. Bros and U. Moschella continued their collaboration on problems related to quantum field theory on (anti) de Sitter spacetime. They made significant progress on the Fourier-Laplace analysis on these spaces from the viewpoint of classes of holomorphic functions in appropriate tuboid domains. This is an important ingredient in their program of constructing field propagators on holomorphic spaces. Discussions with H.J. Borchers, D. Buchholz and S.J. Summers dealt with the relation between the principle of maximal analyticity of J. Bros and U. Moschella and the condition of geometric modular action (cf. above) and modular covariance. They stimulated an investigation of global properties of vacuum-like states on de Sitter space by H.J. Borchers and D. Buchholz. Another interesting issue which was discussed is the relation between the holomorphic approach of J. Bros and U. Moschella and the wave-front set condition of R. Brunetti, K. Fredenhagen and M. Radzikowski.

S. Doplicher and K. Fredenhagen analyzed in which sense the local algebras of free massive fields in their basic model of quantum spactime deform to the usual local algebras on Minkowski space if the Planck length is treated as a parameter tending to zero, while the mass of the field is fixed. Interesting partial results emerged, although the problem turned out to be unexpectedly subtle.

The question of the existence of a local vacuum for quantum fields in curved spacetime was addressed by B. Kay. The point of view which he adopts in his approach to characterize preferred states is very different from the principle of geometric modular action proposed by D. Buchholz and S.J. Summers. There has been a very stimulating and encouraging exchange of ideas on this issue. B. Kay also discussed with R. Verch the question as to how one might possibly weaken the Hadamard condition for linear quantum fields in curved spacetime while maintaining local quasi-equivalence.

e) Concepts and constructive methods. Besides the work addressed to the above specific issues there has been a fruitful exchange on general conceptual and constructive problems amongst the participants of this project, especially K. Baumann, J. Bros, M. Dubois-Violette, R. Haag, H. Narnhofer, D. Schlingemann, E. Seiler, O. Steinmann, R. Stora and E.H. Wichmann.

The intriguing ideas of R. Haag on a reformulation of quantum theory based on the concept of "event" were discussed both in seminars and in many private conversations. It would be desirable to develop an appropriate mathematical setting which allows one to formalize these physically attractive ideas.

K. Baumann worked on the existence of so-called bounded Wightman fields, a question raised originally by J. Yngvason. His results, which partly emerged in conversations with H. Rehren, provide strong evidence to the effect that bounded Wightman fields in two spacetime dimensions which commute at space- and timelike distances are sums of p-products of chiral Fermi fields.

The problem of the relation between the Wightman framework of quantum field theory and the algebraic setting was discussed by H. Narnhofer and E.H. Wichmann. Special attention was given to the question whether every subnet of a local net of von Neumann algebras which is generated by Wightman fields can also be regarded as generated by (possibly multi-variable) fields. An affirmative answer to this question seems within reach.

An interesting approach towards the direct construction of local C^{*}- algebras by Euclidean methods was completed by D. Schlingemann during this project. Discussions with J. Bros, E. Seiler and J. Yngvason helped to settle various technical points which had appeared in this work.

O. Steinmann worked on a justification of the perturbative construction of quantum electrodynamics by methods of axiomatic field theory. His treatment of the infraparticle problem stimulated a general discussion of the particle concept in theories with long range forces.

R. Stora commented on an approach *a la* Epstein-Glaser towards the perturbative construction of non-abelian gauge theories which has been put forward by the group of G. Scharf in Zürich. He pointed out that some apparent cohomological obstructions ought to be checked and M. Dubois-Violette was able to show that there are no such problems. This conceptually surprisingly simple approach seems therefore quite promising.

The use of geometrical methods of analytic completion versus the Dyson wave equation method for determining the null regions of commutator functions was discussed by H.J. Borchers, J. Bros, D. Buchholz, R. Stora and E.H. Wichmann. It turned out, much to the surprise of the experts, that for certain non-standard regions the Dyson method gives stronger results than the analytic techniques.

Finally, problems appearing in renormalization theory triggered a discussion between J. Herman, B. Kuckert, M. Oberguggenberger and I. Todorov on the application of new types of generalized functions (Colombeau-framework) to problems in constructive quantum field theory.

The preceding outline of activities reveals the broad spectrum of problems treated and the many interrelations between the various subjects. The fact that more new intriguing questions were raised during this project than answered provides evidence of the stimulating and fruitful atmosphere at ESI. It is to be expected that a substantial part of the ongoing projects mentioned above will be finished within a few months and will result in further ESI-publications.

The efficient handling of all practical matters by the staff of the Institute and the excellent working conditions (apart from some minor shortcomings of the electronic equipment) were essential for the success of this project. There was unanimous agreement that this intensive exchange between experts working in quite different areas will have substantial impact on the future development of local quantum physics.

Nonlinear theory of generalized functions

Organized by M. Oberguggenberger (Innsbruck), September – December 1997 5 Preprints contributed: [502], [508], [511], [512], [513].

Money spent: AS 518.500.- (ESI), AS 124.000.- (foreign)

The aim of the project was to develop applications of the nonlinear theory of generalized functions to various fields in mathematical analysis and mathematical physics, and in particular, to investigate the interplay of nonlinearity and creation and propagation of singularities in models involving differential equations and generalized functions. The project proceeded in the three phases (i) Lie groups, symmetries and relativity; (ii) evolution equations and propagation of singularities; (iii) nonlinear models with stochastic processes from October 15 - December 20, 1997 (with an early contribution of P. Olver in September). The general and intended character of the project was to bring together experts from these fields with a core of researchers in algebras of generalized functions for talks, discussions and joint research.

There were 30 invited visitors, 4 guests from abroad visiting on their own, and 10 - 15 mathematicians and physicists from Vienna participating regularly in research and discussions.

Results. In the sequel, the activities and results will be grouped roughly according to the themes of the three phases, with an additional item: structure theory and interaction with quantum field theory. Following the description of activities, main results (which were obtained at the workshop and have led or will lead to publications) are emphasized separately.

Lie groups, symmetry and relativity. In this area, four topics were pursued:

(i) Lie group actions on generalized solutions to nonlinear parial differential equations. This involved nonlinear transformations of delta waves, invariance of solutions in the sense of association to hyperbolic systems of conservation laws under group transformations, nonprojectable group actions in algebras of generalized functions, and Lie semigroups (Dapic, Hermann, Kunzinger, Rosinger, M.O.). **Results:** it Sufficient conditions for invariance in the association sense, new examples of transformation of delta waves.

(ii) Ordinary differential equations and generalized functions. Study of ordinary differential equations in Colombeau algebras, control theory, and delta function terms (Hermann, Nedeljkov, Gramchev, M.O.). **Results:** it A class of ODEs with delta function terms was found which admits distributional solutions.

(iii) General relativity: Foundations were laid for modelling distributional curvature by means of generalized function algebras, and geodesics as well as symmetries in impulsive gravitational waves were studied (Vickers, Steinbauer, in collaboration with Aichelburg, Balasin). **Results:** it Computation of broken geodesics and geodesic deviation in the geometry of ppwaves.

(iv) First investigations into geometric theory of generalized functions on manifolds, and generalized manifolds (Hermann, Hazewinkel, Kunzinger, Kriegl).

Evolution equations and propagation of singularities. Activities in this area can be summarized in three groups:

(i) Schrödinger equations. The nonlinear Kronig-Penney model was investigated both in algebras of generalized functions and concerning distributional limits; and similarly the semilinear Schrödinger equation with additive white noise (Lange, Russo, M.O.). Further, operator theory methods were developed that apply to generalized function potentials in the linear, stationary Schrödinger equation (Antonevich, Radyno). **Results:** it Solution of the nonlinear KronigPenney model and limiting behavior for positive measures as potential; generalized solutions to the linear Schrödinger equation with additive white noise.

(ii) Hyperbolic conservation laws and related topics. The nature of singular shocks and delta shocks in conservation laws was clarified (Keyfitz, M.O.). All possible Rankine-Hugoniot conditions obtainable in solutions in the sense of association, using generalized Heaviside functions to solve the Riemann problem, were characterized (Egorov, M.O.). The relation of Colombeau solutions to Maslov asymptotic solutions was investigated (Omel'yanov). In models with dispersion or diffusion, blow-up mechanisms were studied (Bona, Scialom, Egorov). **Results:** it Discovery of the occurrence of singular shocks in systems obtainable from gas dynamics; characterization of all possible Rankine-Hugoniot conditions.

(iii) Regularity theory. The notion of \mathcal{G}^{∞} -regularity was further developed, in particular, \mathcal{G}^{∞} -hypoellipticity of linear operators with non-constant, degenerate coefficients (Reissig) as well as linear operators with constant, generalized coefficients (Pilipović, Nedeljkov). Modelling of boundary layers in generalized functions was discussed (Gues). In diffusion equations, general results on the propagation region of analyticity and Gevrey regularity of initial data were obtained (Biagioni, Gramchev). **Results:** it \mathcal{G}^{∞} -hypoellipticity of a class of degenerate operators was proved, determination of propagation domains of analyticity in Kuramoto-Sivashinsky-type equations.

In addition, the construction of Colombeau solutions in semilinear elliptic equations (Marti, Scarpalezos, Delcroix) and nonlinear Klein-Gordon equations (Pilipović, Nedeljkov, Wang, M.O.) was continued.

Nonlinear models with stochastic processes. The main investigations focused around semilinear heat equations with additive and multiplicative white noise, study of pathwise limits and asymptotic series in Wick renormalized solutions (Russo). This was extended to semilinear wave- and Schrödinger equations. Mechanisms leading to "trivial" limits were further investigated. A comparison of the Colombeau approach and the Hida white noise approach to stochastic PDEs led to a unification on a higher level of generalization. The possibility of using the concept of viscosity solutions in the Hida white noise approach was discussed (Holden, Øksendal). Various notions of "measurement solutions" (regularized derivatives) as related to stochastic differential equations and Colombeau generalized functions were discussed (Ubøe, Zhang). **Results:** it A general theorem on pathwise limits explaining the mechanism in semilinear stochastic PDEs with additive white noise was proven. The case of multiplicative white noise in the semilinear heat equation was settled.

Structure theory, quantum field theory. Various approaches to the construction of Colombeau generalized functions (scales, seminorms, sheaf methods, nonstandard valuations) were unified (Marti, Radyno, Scarpalezos, T. Todorov). A first construction of a Colombeau-type algebra containing periodic hyperfunctions was obtained (Valmorin). A characterization of \mathcal{G}^{∞} regularity in terms of generalized point-values was achieved (Pilipović, M.O.). The applicability of infinite dimensional differential calculus to characterize Colombeau generalized functions was investigated (with Kriegl). **Results:** it Construction of Colombeau algebras containing periodic hyperfunctions, point-value characterization of \mathcal{G}^{∞} -regularity.

As a result of interaction with the ESI-program "Local Quantum Physics"

(organizers: D. Buchholz, J. Yngvason, H. Narnhofer), the question of applicability of generalized function algebras in renormalization problems of quantum field theory was repeatedly discussed with I. Todorov, H. Grosse, B. Kuckert and others. Certain regularization processes in the Thirring model were seen to be representable by Colombeau generalized functions.

Publications. Apart from the ESI-preprints listed separately, a proceedings volume "Nonlinear Theory of Generalized Functions" of the workshop will be published in the Pitman Research Notes in Mathematics Series. The proceedings volume will contain short review articles on the fields represented by the participants, in their interaction with the questions of nonlinearity and singularities as worked out during the program. It is intended as a survey of the state of the art in the field.

Further, a book project "Geometric Theory of Generalized Functions", as a collaboration of M. Grosser, M. Kunzinger, M.O., R. Steinbauer was initiated as a result of discussions at the workshop. It has been accepted for future publication by Kluwer.

In addition, the work "Parametric Lie Group Actions on Global Generalised Solutions of Nonlinear PDEs" presented by E.E. Rosinger at the workshop has also been accepted for publication by Kluwer.

Collaborations initiated. Apart from various collaborations among participants already existing, a

number of new joint projects were started as a consequence of the workshop. This includes work on general relativity involving J. Vickers, R. Steinbauer, H. Balasin (Southampton - Vienna); a joint project on Lie transformation groups with S. Pilipović and his school and M. Kunzinger, M. Grosser (Novi Sad - Vienna); nonlinear Schrödinger equations with H. Lange and M. Oberguggenberger (Köln - Innsbruck) and fundamental solutions to linear PDEs in the Colombeau setting, N. Radyno and M. Oberguggenberger (Minsk - Innsbruck).

Conclusion. From my point of view, the project successfully achieved its aims. The nonlinear theory of generalized functions has found a firm place in mathematical analysis. New applications and extensions of old applications demonstrated its applicability in a wide range of problems. Apart from the mathematical benefits of the project, the interaction with local and invited physicists proved particularly fruitful. The project also served to crystallize new directions of research in nonlinear models with generalized functions. Notably, the main focus in the near future will be on differential geometric aspects, applications to general relativity, regularity theory in partial differential equations and structure theory of algebras of generalized functions.

I would like to add that all participants were highly satisfied with the working conditions and stimulating atmosphere at the Erwin-Schrödinger-Institute. I also pass on the enthusiastic words of praise for institution and administration of the Erwin-Schrödinger-Institute that were expressed by practically all participants.

February 5, 1998

Michael Oberguggenberger, Universität Innsbruck.

Programs of 1996

Condensed Matter Physics – Dynamics, Geometry, and Spectral Theory.

Topological, Conformal and Integrable Field Theory.

Representation Theory with Applications to Mathematical Physics. preprints contributed: [488], [492]

Mathematical Problems of Quantum Gravity. Continuation of the 1996 program, organized by A. Ashtekhar and P. Aichelburg.

Money spent: AS 69.000.-(ESI).

19 Preprints contributed: [417], [418], [420], [422], [430], [441], [456], [457], [458], [459], [462], [463], [472], [473], [474], [476], [509], [510], [517].

Hyperbolic Systems with Singularities.

16 Preprints contributed: [416], [423], [427], [429], [436], [437], [438], [442], [444], [445], [455], [468], [483], [489], [491], [504].

Guests via Director's shares

Guests of Walter Thirring.

Money spent: AS 44.000.- (ESI), 3.000.- (foreign). 5 Preprints contributed: [431], [440], [443], [478], [490]

Guests of Klaus Schmidt. Everything is included in the program report on Ergodic Theory.

Guests of Peter Michor.

Money spent: AS 146.000.–(ESI), AS 352.000.–(foreign)

16 preprints contributed: [415], [419], [426], [435], [452], [453], [454], [465], [466], [479], [482], [485], [496], [506], [514]; [523].

Guests of Hoffman-Ostenhof.

Hoffmann-Ostenhof is also the local coordinator of the EU TMR-network 96-0001 'Partial Differential Equations and Applications in Quantum Mechanics' (November 1996–October 2000, ca. AS 2.5 Mio to be spent at ESI), together with TU Berlin, University of Wales, Université de Paris-Sud, University of Kopenhagen, Universität Regensburg.

Money spent: AS 103.000.–(ESI), AS 365.000.–(foreign, EU)

8 preprints contributed: [421], [447], [480], [481], [495], [500], [514]; [527]

Guests of H. Grosse.

Money spent: AS 23.000.-(ESI), AS 2.000.-(foreign) 1 preprint contributed: [526]

Guests of A. Cap.

Money spent: AS 7.000.–(ESI). preprints contributed: [450]

List of Preprints

We try to keep track of the bibliographical data of the published versions of the preprints – this is incomplete and we are constantly updating it. Papers in mathematics have been bibliographically completed up to Nr. 240. Therefore we enclose the list of all preprints, not only those of 1997.

1993

- V. A. Bunegina, A. L. Onishchik, Two Families of Flag Supermanifolds, Diff. Geom. Appl. 4 (1994), 329–360.
- 2. G. Landi, G. Marmo, G. Vilasi, An algebraic Approach to Integrability (1993), 16 pp..
- Peter C. Aichelburg, Piotr Bizon, Magnetically Charged Black Holes and Their Stability, Phys. Rev. D (3) 48 (1993), 607–615.
- 4. Peter W. Michor, *Radon transform and curvature*, 75 Years of Radon Transform (S. Gindikin, P. Michor, eds.), International Press, Boston, 1994, pp. 249–251.
- 5. Janusz Grabowski, Isomorphisms of the Jacobi and Poisson Brackets (1993), 5 pp..
- A. Cap, P. W. Michor, H. Schichl, A Quantum Group like Structure on non Commutative 2-Tori, Lett. Math. Phys. 28 (1993), 251–255.
- D. V. Alekseevsky, Peter W. Michor, Differential Geometry of g-Manifolds, Diff. Geom. Appl. 5 (1995), 371–403.
- H. Grosse, W. Maderner, C. Reitberger, Cyclic Cohomology for Massive 1+1d-Fermions and Virasoro Algebras, J. of Math. Physics 34 (1993), 4469–4477.
- A. M. Vinogradov, From Symmetries of Partial Differential Equations towards the Secondary ('Quantized') Calculus, J. Geom. Physics 14 (1994), 146–194, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- A. L. Onishchik, On the Rigidity of Supergrassmannians, Annals of Global Analysis and Geometry (1993), 361–372.
- O. Gil-Medrano, P. W. Michor, Pseudoriemannian Metrics on Spaces of Almost Hermitian Structures, appeared as "Geodesics on Spaces of Almost Hermitian Structures", Israel J. Math. 88 (1994), 319–332.
- A. Borovick, S. Kulinich, V. Popkov, Yu. Strzhemechny, A new class of completely solvable bi-Plane 2d Vertex Models (1993), 36 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- A. Akhiezer, A. Borovick, V. Popkov, Exactly solvable system of coupled nonlinear Schrödinger equations, Phys. Lett. A 182 (1993), 44–48, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 14. Karl-Henning Rehren, On the Range of the Index of Subfactors, J. Funct. An. 134 (1995), 183–193.
- Pierre Cartier, Construction Combinatoire des Invariants de Vassiliev Kontsevich des Næds, C. R. Acad. Sci., Paris, Ser. I 316, No.11 (1993), 1205-1210, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Janusz Grabowski, Poisson Lie groups and their relation to quantum groups, Panoramas of Mathematics, Banach Center Publ. 34, Polish Acad. Sci., Warsaw, 1995, pp. 55–64.
- J. Grabowski, G. Marmo, A. M. Perelomov, *Poisson structures: towards a classification*, Modern Phys. Letters A 8 (1993), 1719–1733.
- 18. P.C. Aichelburg, P. Bizon, Saddle points of stringy actions, Acta Phys. Polon. B 24 (1993), 1209–1220.
- Yassen S. Stanev, Classification of the local extensions of the chiral observable algebra in SU(3) WZNW models, appeared under the title 'Classification of the local extensions of the SU(3) chiral current algebra', J. Math. Phys. 36 (1995), 2053–2069.
- 20. Ludmil K. Hadjiivanov, Quantum deformation of Bose parastatistics, J. Math. Phys. 34 (1993), 5476-5492.

- A. Alekseevsky, D. Alekseevsky, Asystatic G-manifolds, Proceedings of the conference on Differential Geometry and Topology, Alghero 1992 (F. Tricerri, R. Caddeo, ed.), World Sci. Publishing, River Edge, NJ, 1993, pp. 1-22.
- W. Maderner, H. Grosse, C. Reitberger, On spin chains, charges, and anomalies, Journ. Phys. A: Math. 27 (1994), 3879 ff.
- H. Grosse, P. Presnajder, The Construction of Non-Commutative Manifolds Using Coherent States, Letters of Math. Physics 28 (1993), 239–250.
- D. Bernard, M. Gaudin, F. D. M. Haldane, V. Pasquier, Yang-Baxter equations in long range interacting systems, J. Phys. A 26 (1993), 5219–5236.
- H. Grosse, E. Raschhofer, Bethe-Ansatz Solution of a Modified SU(3)-XXZ-Model, On three levels (A. Verbeure, M. Fannes, C. Maes, eds.), Plenum Publishing Corporation, New York, 1993.
- J. Grabowski, A Poisson-Lie group Structure on the Diffeomorphism Group of a Circle, Letters of Math. Physics 32 (1994), 307–313.
- 27. R. Hempel, J. Laitenberger, Schrödinger operators with strong local magnetic perturbations: existence of eigenvalues in gaps of the essential spectrum, Proceedings of the conference: Mathematical results in quantum mechanics, Blossin 1993 (M. Demuth, P. Exner, H. Neidhardt, V. Zagrebnov, eds.), Series: Operator theory: advances and applications, Vol. 70, Birkhäuser, Basel, Boston, Berlin, 1994, pp. 13–18.
- J. Grabowski, G. Landi, G. Marmo, G. Vilasi, Generalized Reduction Procedure: Symplectic and Poisson Formalism, Fortschritte der Physik/Progress in Physics 42, 5 (1994), 393–427.
- Nikolai S. Nadirashvili, Raleigh's conjecture on the principal frequency of the clamped plate, Arch. Ration. Mech. Anal. 129, 1 (1995), 1–10.
- 30. D. V. Alekseevsky, M. M. Graev, Twistors and Cartan Connections (1993), 14 pp..
- 31. V. N. Popov, Magnetic and Superconductive States in the Repulsive Hubbard Model (1993), 18 pp..
- 32. D. Burghelea, C. Constantinescu, Cutting and Glueing Back along a Closed Simple Curve on a Riemann Surface (1993), 20 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- A. Yu. Alekseev, I. T. Todorov, Quadratic brackets from symplectic forms, Nucl. Phys. B 241 (1994), 413–428.
- P. Furlan, Y. S. Stanev, I. T. Todorov, Exchange relations and correlation functions for a quantum particle on the SU₂-group manifold, J. Math. Phys. 35 (1994), 2130–2141.
- M. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, T. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, H. Stremnitzer, Local properties of Coulombic wave functions, Commun. Math. Phys. 163 (1994), 185–215.
- 36. M. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, T. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, N. Nadirashvili, Regularity of the nodal sets of solutions to Schrödinger equations, Proceedings of the conference: Mathematical results in quantum mechanics, Blossin 1993 (M. Demuth, P. Exner, H. Neidhardt, V. Zagrebnov, eds.), Series: Operator theory: advances and applications, Vol. 70, Birkhäuser, Basel, Boston, Berlin, 1994, pp. 19–25.
- J. F. Glazebrook, F. W. Kamber, Secondary invariants and chiral anomalies of basic Dirac families, Differential Geom. Appl. 3 (1993), 285–299.
- 38. Mark Losik, Categorical differential geometry, Cahier Topol. Geom. Diff. Categor. 35(4) (1994), 274–290.
- D. V. Alekseevsky, P. W. Michor, Differential geometry of Cartan connections, Publ. Math. Debrecen 47 (1995), 349–375.
- G. Landi, G. Marmo, G. Vilasi, Recursion Operators: Meaning and Existence for Completely Integrable Systems, J. Math. Phys. 35 (1994), 808–815.
- 41. Rudolf Schmid, A solution of the BRST Consistency Condition and g-symplectic orbits (1993), 11 pp..
- Heinz Siedentop, Bound for the atomic ground state density at the nucleus, Mathematical quantum theory. II. Schrödinger operators (Vancouver, BC, 1993), CRM Proc. Lecture Notes, 8, AMS, Providence, 1995, pp. 271–275.
- 43. R. Hempel, J. Voigt, The spectrum of Schrödinger operators in $L_p(\mathbb{R}^d)$ and $C_0(\mathbb{R}^d)$, Proceedings of the conference: Mathematical results in quantum mechanics, Blossin 1993 (M. Demuth, P. Exner, H. Neidhardt, V. Zagrebnov, eds.), Series: Operator theory: advances and applications, Vol. 70, Birkhäuser, Basel, Boston, Berlin, 1994, pp. 63–72.
- D. Burghelea, L. Friedlander, T. Kappler, Asymptotic Expansion of the Witten deformation of the analytic torsion, J. Funct. Anal. 137, 2 (1996), 320–363.
- H. Grosse, P. Prešnajder, M. Chaichian, Unitary Realizations of the q-Oszillator Algebra, Jour. Phys. A: Math. 27 (1994), 2045 ff.
- F. Lizzi, G. Marmo, G. Sparano, A. M. Vinogradov, Eikonal type equations for geometric singularities of solutions in field theory, J. Geom. Physics 14 (1994), 211–235.
- 47. I. S. Krasil'shchik, Lie algebra structures for symmetries of differential equations possessing recursion operators (1993), 14 pp..
- 48. I. S. Krasil'shchik, An algebraic model for characteristics of differential equations (1993), 15 pp..
- Izu Vaisman, Second order Hamiltonian vector fields on tangent bundles, Diff. Geom. and its Appl. 5 (1995), 153–170.
- Ivan Penkov, Vera Serganova, Generic Irreducible Representations of Finite-Dimensional Lie Superalgebras, Int. J. Math. 5,3 (1994), 389–419.
- V.Lychagin, Quantizations of braided differential operators, appeared as 'Braided differential operators and quantizations in ABC-categories', C. R. Acad. Sci. Paris Sr. I Math. 318 (1994), 857–862.

- 52. I. T. Todorov, What are we learning from 2-dimensional conformal models?, Mathematical Physics Towards the 21st Century, R.N. Sen, A. Gersten (Eds.), Ben Gurion Univ. of the Negev Press, Beer Sheva, 1994, pp. 160–176.
- I. Z. Golubchik, V. V. Sokolov, S. I. Svinolupov, A new class of nonassociative algebras and a generalized factorization method (1993), 11 pp..
- A. V. Bocharov, V. V. Sokolov, S. I. Svinolupov, On Some Equivalence Problems for Differential Equations (1993), 12 pp..
- 55. V. N. Chetverikov, Invertible linear differential operators on two-dimensional manifolds (1993), 16 pp..
- Andreas Cap, Jan Slovak, On multilinear operators commuting with Lie derivatives, Annals of Global Analysis and Geom. 13 (1995), 251–279.
- H. Grosse, V. N. Popov, On the relation between spin systems and fermion systems, Phys. Lett. A 188 (1994), 317 ff.
- Harald Grosse, Walter Maderner, On the classical origin of the fermionic Schwinger term, Lett. Math. Phys. 31 (1994), 57–63.
- Harald Grosse, Walter Maderner, Christian Reitberger, Can anomalies melt?, Proc. of the Int. Symp. "Generalized Symmetries in Physics" (H.–D. Doebner, V. Dobrev, A. Ushveridze, eds.), World Scientific, 1994, pp. 313–327.
- 60. J. Dereziński, C. Gerard, Chapter 3: Quantum time dependent 2-body Hamiltonians, Scattering theory of classical and quantum N-particle systems, Texts and Monographs in Physics, Springer-Verlag, Berlin, 1997 (to appear).
- 61. V. Lychagin, Braidings and Quantizations over bialgebras (1993), 23 pp..
- 62. B. Thaller, A criterion for essential self-adjointness, J. Operator Theory 31 (1994), 351–361.
- 63. D. Yafaev, Eigenfunctions of the continuous spectrum for the N-particle Schrödinger operator, Spectral and scattering theory. Proceedings of the Taniguchi international workshop, held at Sanda, Hyogo, Japan (M. Ikawa, eds.), Lect. Notes Pure Appl. Math 161, Marcel Dekker, Basel, 1994, pp. 259–286.
- P. Kargaev, E. Korotyaev, Effective masses and conformal mappings, Commun. Math. Phys. 169, 3 (1995), 597–625.
- Ronald G. Douglas, James F. Glazebrook, Franz W. Kamber, Guoliang Yu, Index formulas for geometric Dirac operators in Riemannian Foliations, K-Theory 9, 5 (1995), 407–441.
- 66. Andrei Borowick, Gaetano Vilasi, Invariant endomorphism and complete integrability of a dissipative multicomponent Burgers model (1993), 11 pp..
- S. Vugalter, Limits on stability of positive molecular ions in a homogeneous magnetic field, Comm. Math. Phys. 180 (1996), 709–732.

$\mathbf{1994}$

- Martin Markl, Steve Shnider, Drinfel'd algebra deformations and the associahedra, Int. Math. Research Notices 4 (1994), 169–176.
- L. Pittner, P. Uray, Duals of quasitriangular Z₂-graded Hopf algebras and the classical limit, J. Math. Phys. 36, 2 (1995), 944–966.
- 70. Michel Dubois-Violette, Peter W. Michor, A common generalization of the Frölicher-Nijenhuis bracket and the Schouten bracket for symmetric multi vector fields, Indag. Mathem., N.S. **6(1)** (1995), 51–66.
- H. Grosse, J. Stubbe, Splitting of Landau levels in the presence of external potentials, Lett. Math. Phys. 34, 1 (1995), 59–68.
- D. V. Alekseevsky, J. Grabowski, G. Marmo, P. W. Michor, Poisson structures on the cotangent bundle of a Lie group or a principal bundle and their reductions, J. Math. Phys. 35 (9) (1994), 4909–4928.
- Anthony Bloch, P. S. Krishnaprasad, Jerrold E. Marsden, Tudor S. Ratiu, The Euler-Poincaré Equations and Double Bracket Dissipation, Commun. Math. Phys. 175, 1 (1996), 1–42.
- Rainer Hempel, Ira Herbst, Strong magnetic fields, Dirichlet boundaries and spectral gaps, Commun. Math. Phys. 169, 2 (1995), 237–259.
- 75. László Erdős, Magnetic Lieb-Thirring inequalities, Comm. Math. Phys. 170 (1995), 629-668.
- 76. S. Twareque Ali, Amine M. El Gradechi, Gérard G. Emch, Modular algebras in geometric quantization (1994), 29 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 77. C. Malyshev, V. N. Popov, Three-band Hubbard model and high temperature superconductivity (1994), 29 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- S. A. Vugalter, G. M. Zhislin, On the extremal properties of the resonances for two particles systems in magnetic field, J. Math. Physics 3 (1995), 501–516.
- Anton Yu. Alekseev, Harald Grosse, Volker Schomerus, Combinatorial Quantization of the Hamiltonian Chern-Simons Theory, Comm. Math. Phys. 172, 2 (1995), 317–358.
- Anton Yu. Alekseev, A. Z. Malkin, Symplectic geometry of the Chern-Simons theory, Integrable models and strings. Proceedings of the 3rd Baltic RIM student seminar, held at Helsinki, Finland, 13-17 September 1993 (A. Alekseev, eds.), Lect. Notes Phys. 436, Springer-Verlag, 1994, pp. 59–97.
- 81. Giovanni Gallavotti, Ergodicity, ensembles, irreversibility in Boltzmann and beyond (1994), 11 pp..
- 82. H. Grosse, P. Presnajder, The Dirac operator on the fuzzy sphere, Lett. Math. Phys. 33, 2 (1995), 171-181.

83. Walter Thirring, Boltzmann's Legacy in the Thinking of Modern Physics (1994), 18 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.

ESI

- 84. Piotr Bizoń, Gravitating solitons and hairy black holes (1994), 28 pp..
- T. D. Lee, Vacuum as a physical medium (Relativistic heavy ion collisions and the Boltzmann equations) (1994), 28 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 86. Sergey I. Bezuglyi, H-cocycles and actions of group extensions (1994), 17 pp..
- 87. Peter W. Michor, Basic Differential Forms for Actions of Lie Groups, Proc. AMS 124,5 (1996), 1633–1642.
- Editor: Thomas Hoffmann-Ostenhof, Collection of Abstracts of all Lectures given at the Workshop on Schrödinger Operators, Vienna, December 8–12, 1993 (1994), 36 pp..
- Ph. A. Martin, G. Nenciu, Semi-classical inelastic S-matrix for one-dimensional N-states systems, Reviews in Math. Phys. 7 (1995), 193–242, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Krzysztof Gawędzki, Coulomb gas representation of the SU(2) WZW correlators at higher genera, Lett. Math. Phys. 33, 4 (1995), 335–345.
- H. Grosse, S. Pallua, M. Prester, E. Raschhofer, On a quantum group invariant spin chain with non-local boundary conditions, Jour. Phys. A: Math. 27 (1994), 4761 ff.
- V. M. Tkachuk, The Supersymmetry Representation for Correlation Functions of Disordered Systems (1994), 12 pp..
- T. Hudetz, Topological Entropy for Appropriately Approximated C^{*}-Algebras, J. Math. Phys. 35, 8 (1994), 4303–4333.
- 94. Biographical and Historical Talks given at the International Symposium in honor of Ludwig Boltzmann's 150th Birthday, Vienna, February 24–26, 1994 (1994), 33 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Yassen S. Stanev, Classification of the local extensions of the SU(2)xSU(2) chiral current algebras, J. Math. Phys. 36, 4 (1995), 2070–2084.
- 96. T. Bröcker, R. F. Werner, *Mixed states with positive Wigner functions* (1994), 19 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 97. Valentin Ya. Golodets, Alexander M. Sokhet, Cocycles of type III transformation group and AT property for the double Mackey action (1994), 39 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Domokos Szasz, Boltzmann's Ergodic Hypothesis, a Conjecture for Centuries?, Studia Scientiarum Math. Hungarorum 31 (1996), 299–322.
- M. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, T. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, N. Nadirashvili, Interior Hölder estimates for solutions of Schrödinger equations and the regularity of nodal sets, Commun. in PDE 207/8 (1995), 1241–1273.
- 100. M. Sh. Birman, D. R. Yafaev, Scattering matrix for a perturbation of a periodic Schrödinger operator by a decaying potential, St. Petersbg. Math. J. 6, 3 (1995), 453–474.
- 101. W. Thirring, Stability of Matter (1994), 15 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 102. Armin Uhlmann, Spheres and Hemispheres as Quantum State Spaces, J. Geom. Phys. 18, 1 (1996), 76–92.
- 103. G. G. Emch, H. Narnhofer, W. Thirring, G. L. Sewell, Anosov Actions on Non-commutative Algebras, J. Math. Phys. 35, 11 (1994), 5582–5599.
- 104. F. Benatti, H. Narnhofer, Strong Clustering in Type III Entropic K-Systems (1994), 30 pp..
- 105. H. Grosse, Quasifree Second Quantization and Its Relation to Noncommutative Geometry, Proc. of the Karpacz School 1994 (J. Lukierski et al., eds.), Kluwer Acad. Publ., 1994.
- 106. R. Alicki, H. Narnhofer, Comparison of Dynamical Entropies for the Noncommutative Shifts, Lett. Math. Phys. 33, 3 (1995), 241–247.
- 107. Peter W. Michor, Cornelia Vizman, N-transitivity of Certain Diffeomorphism Groups, Acta Math. Univ. Commenianae 63, 2 (1994), 221–225.
- 108. V. Ya. Golodets, Approximately Transitive Actions of Abelian Groups and Spectrum (1994), 14 pp..
- Sergey I. Bezuglyi, Valentin Ya. Golodets, Dynamical Entropy for Zⁿ-actions and Bogoliubov Automorphisms of the CAR-algebra (1994), 21 pp..
- E. Langmann, G. W. Semenoff, QCD₁₊₁ with Massless Quarks and Gauge Covariant Sugawara Construction, Phys. Letters B 341 (1994), 195–204.
- 111. M. Dubois-Violette, P. W. Michor, Dérivations et calcul différentiel non commutatif II, C.R. Acad. Sci. Paris Série I **319** (1994), 927–931.
- 112. Max Karoubi, Formes Topologiques Non Commutatives, Ann. Sci. Ec. Norm. Super. IV, 28, 4 (1995), 477–492, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Anton Yu. Alekseev, Harald Grosse, Volker Schomerus, Combinatorial Quantization of the Hamiltonian Chern-Simons Theory II, Commun. Math. Phys. 174, 3 (1996), 561–604.
- 114. Piotr Bizon, Harmonic maps between three-spheres, Proc. R. Soc. Lond. A 451, 1943 (1995), 779–793.
- Sorin Popa, An Axiomatization of the Lattice of Higher Relative Commutants of a Subfactor, Invent. Math. 120, 3 (1995), 427–445.
- 116. Mark V. Losik, The Cohomology of the Complex of G–Invariant Forms on G–Manifolds, Ann. Global Anal. Geom. 13 (1995), 323–338.
- 117. P. Forgács, Z. Horváth, P.A. Horváthy, Bogomolny-type Equations for Gravitating Gauged Sigma Models (1994), 11 pp..
- Edwin Langmann, Jouko Mickelsson, (3+1)-Dimensional Schwinger Terms and Non-commutative Geometry, Phys. Letters B 338 (1994), 241–248.
- 119. A. Jadczyk, On Quantum Jumps, Events and Spontaneous Localization Models (1994), 18 pp..
- 120. Shahn Majid, q-Epsilon Tensor for Quantum and Braided Spaces, J. Math. Phys. 36, 4 (1995), 1991–2007.

- Yassen S. Stanev, Ivan T. Todorov, On Schwarz Problem for the su₂ Knizhnik–Zamolodchikov Equation, Lett. Math. Phys. 35 (1995), 123–134.
- 122. Izu Vaisman, Super-Geometric Quantization, Acta Math. Univ. Comenianae, 15 pp. (to appear).
- 123. Izu Vaisman, A Lecture on Poisson-Nijenhuis Structures, Integrable systems and foliations. Feuilletages et systemes integrables. Papers from a colloquium, Montpellier, France, May 22–26, 1995 (C. Albert et. al., eds.), Prog. Math. 145, Birkhäuser, 1997, pp. 169–185.
- 124. J.-M. Combes, P. D. Hislop, E. Mourre, Spectral Averaging, Perturbation of Singular Spectrum, and Localization, Trans. Am. Math. Soc. 348, 12 (1996), 4883–4894.
- 125. R. L. Dobrushin, Estimates of Semiinvariants for the Ising Model at Low Temperatures, Topics in statistical and theoretical physics. F. A. Berezin memorial volume (R.L. Dobrushin et al., eds.), Transl., Ser. 2, 177(32), Amer. Math. Soc., 1996, pp. 59–81.
- 126. R. Beig, S. Husa, Initial Data with Toroidal Conformal Symmetry, Phys.Rev.D 50 (1994), 7116-7118.
- 127. I. P. Pavlotsky, G. Vilasi, Some Peculiar Properties of the Relativistic Oscillator in the Postgalilean Approximation, Physica A 214 (1995), 68–81.
- 128. A. V. Bobylev, G. Vilasi, Projective Invariance for Classical and Quantum Systems (1994), 14 pp..
- Heide Narnhofer, Erling Størmer, Walter Thirring, C^{*}-dynamical systems for which the tensor product formula for entropy fails, Lett. Math. Phys. 35, 2 (1995), 145–154.
- 130. Shahn Majid, *-Structures on Braided Spaces, J. Math. Phys. 36, 8 (1995), 4436-4449.
- 131. Shahn Majid, Duality Principle and Braided Geometry (1994), 23 pp..
- Karl-Henning Rehren, Yassen S. Stanev, Ivan T. Todorov, Characterizing Invariants for Local Extensions of Current Algebras, Commun. Math. Phys 174 (1996), 605–634.
- 133. Michel Dubois-Violette, Peter W. Michor, The Frölicher-Nijenhuis Bracket for Derivation Based Non-Commutative Differential Forms, appeared as 'More on the Frölicher-Nijenhuis bracket in non-commutative goemetry', J. Pure and Appl. Algebra 121 (1997), 107–135.
- 134. Ch. Devchand, V. Ogievetsky, *Self-dual Gravity Revisited*, Classical Quantum Gravity **13**, **9** (1996), 2515-2536.
- 135. Paweł Nurowski, Optical Geometries and Related Structures, J. Geom. and Physics 18 (1996), 335-348.
- Heide Narnhofer, Walter Thirring, C^{*} Dynamical Systems that Assymptotically are Highly Anticommutative, Lett. Math. Phys. 35, 2 (1995), 145–154.
- 137. Charles L. Fefferman, Luis A. Seco, The Spin of the Ground State of an Atom, Rev. Mat. Iberoam. 12, 1 (1996), 19–36.
- 138. Dimitry V. Alekseevsky, Stefano Marchiafava, Gradient Quaternionic Vector Fields and a Characterization of the Quaternionic Projective Space, C. R. Acad. Sci Paris, 8 pp. (to appear).
- B. Pavlov, Zero Index of Pair of Projectors and Expansions by Resonance States for Operators with Band Spectrum (1994), 29 pp..
- 140. Wojciech Kopczyński, Pure Spinors in Odd Dimensions, Classical Quantum Gravity 14, 1A (1997), A227–A236.
- 141. Piotr T. Chruściel, Robert M. Wald, On the Topology of Stationary Black Holes, Classical Quantum Gravity 11, 12 (1994), L147–L152.
- 142. Liviu Ornea, Paolo Piccinni, Locally Conformal Kähler Structures in Quaternionic Geometry, Transactions of the AMS **349**, **2** (1997), 641–655.
- 143. V.M. Buchstaber, A.M. Perelomov, On the Functional Equation Related to the Quantum Three-Body Problem, Contemporary mathematical physics. F. A. Berezin memorial volume (R.L. Dobrushin et. al., eds.), AMS Transl. Ser. 2, 175 (31), Am. Math. Soc., 1996, pp. 15–34.
- 144. Editors: P.C. Aichelburg, R. Beig, Collection of Abstracts of All Lectures Given at the Workshop on Mathematical Relativity, Vienna, July 25 - 29, 1994 (1994), 16 pp..
- Daniel J. Rudolph, Klaus Schmidt, Almost Block Independence and Bernoullicity of Z^d-Actions by Automorphisms of Compact Abelian Groups, Invent. Math. 120 (1995), 455–488.
- 146. Shoji Yokura, A Generalized Baum–Fulton–MacPherson's Riemann–Roch (1994), 25 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Gerhard Rein, Cosmological Solutions of the Vlasov-Einstein System with Spherical, Plane, and Hyperbolic Symmetry, Math. Proc. Camb. Philos. Soc. 119, 4 (1996), 739–762.
- 148. Andrei Moroianu, Uwe Semmelmann, Kählerian Killing Spinors, Complex Contact Structures and Twistor Spaces, C. R. Acad. Sci., Paris, Ser. I 323, 1 (1996), 57–61.
- Andrzej Trautman, The Dirac Operator on Pin Manifolds, appeared as "The Dirac Operator on Hypersurfaces", Acta Physica Polonica B 26 (1995), 1283–1310.
- 150. Dimitry V. Alekseevsky, Stefano Marchiafava, Quaternionic Transformations and the First Eigenvalues of Laplacian on a Quaternionic Kähler Manifold, appeared as "Transformations of a quaternionic Kähler manifold, C. R. Acad. Sci Paris I, 320 (1995), 703–708.
- 151. P. Kargaev, E. Korotyaev, The Inverse Problem for Hill Operator, the Direct Approach, Invent. Math. 129, 3 (1997), 567–593.
- 152. Evgeni Korotyaev, The Propagation of the Waves in Periodic Media at Large Time, Asymptotic Anal. 15, 1 (1997), 1–24.
- 153. Chand Devchand, Viktor Ogievetsky, Four Dimensional Integrable Theories (1994), 11 pp..
- Charles P. Boyer, Krzysztof Galicki, Benjamin M. Mann, On Strongly Inhomogeneous Einstein Manifolds, Bull. Lond. Math. Soc. 28, 4 (1996), 401–408.

- J.M. Combes, P.D. Hislop, Landau Hamiltonians with Random Potentials: Localization and the Density of States, Commun. Math. Phys. 177, 3 (1996), 603–629.
- 156. Claude LeBrun, Shin Nayatani, Takashi Nitta, Self-Dual Manifolds with Positive Ricci Curvature, Math. Z. 224, 1 (1997), 49–63.
- 157. Piotr T. Chruściel, Alan D. Rendall, Strong Cosmic Censorship in Vacuum Space-Times with Compact, Locally Homogeneous Cauchy Surfaces, Annals of Physics 242 (2), 349–385.
- 158. Sergey A. Merkulov, Twistor Theory, Complex Homogeneous Manifolds and G-Structures (1994), 9 pp..
- Abhay Ashtekar, Jerzy Lewandowski, Projective Techniques and Functional Integration for Gauge Theories, J. Math. Phys. 36, 5 (1995), 2170–2191.
- Eric A. Carlen, Michael Loss, Optimal Smoothing and Decay Estimates for Viscously Damped Conservation Laws, with Application to the 2–D Navier Stokes Equation, Duke Math. J. 81 (1995), 135–157.
- 161. Evgeni Korotyaev, The Second Order Estimates for the Hill Operator (1994), 10 pp..
- 162. Rainer Hempel, Ira Herbst, Bands and Gaps for Periodic Magnetic Hamiltonians, Partial differential operators and mathematical physics. International conference in Holzhau, Germany, July 3-9, 1994 (M. Demuth et. al., eds.), Oper. Theory, Adv. Appl. 78, Birkhäuser, 1995, pp. 175–184.
- Andreas Cap, Hermann Schichl, Jiří Vanžura, On Twisted Tensor Products of Algebras, Commun. Algebra 23(12) (1995), 4701–4735.
- 164. Mircea Craioveanu, Mircea Puta, On the Rigid Body with Two Linear Controls, Differential geometry and applications. Proceedings of the 6th international conference, Brno, Czech Republic, 1995 (J. Janyska et. al., eds.), Masaryk University, Brno, 1996, pp. 373–380.
- 165. Mircea Puta, On an Extension of the 3-Dimensional Toda Lattice, Differential geometry and applications. Proceedings of the 6th international conference, Brno, Czech Republic, 1995, Masaryk University, Brno, 1996, pp. 455-462.
- 166. Grigorii Zhislin, Location of the Essential Spectrum of the Energy Operators of the Quantum Systems with Nonincreasing Magnetic Field, Theor. and Math. Phys. 107 (3) (1996), 372–387.
- 167. Denis V. Juriev, On the Dynamics of Noncanonically Coupled Oscillators and its Hidden Superstructure (1994), 10 pp..
- 168. István Rácz, On Einstein's Equations for Spacetimes Admitting a Non-Null Killing Field (1994), 23 pp..
- 169. R. Beig, N. Ó Murchadha, The Momentum Constraints of General Relativity and Spatial Conformal Isometries, Commun. Math. Phys 176 (1996), 723–738.
- 170. Denis V. Juriev, Symmetric Designs on Lie Algebras and Interactions of Hamiltonian Systems (1994), 5 pp..
- 171. Gilbert Weinstein, N-Black Hole Stationary and Axially Symmetric Solutions of the Einstein-Maxwell Equations, Commun. Partial Differ. Equations 21, 9-10 (1996), 1389–1430.
- 172. Abhay Ashtekar, Jerzy Lewandowski, Donald Marolf, José Mourão, Thomas Thiemann, Coherent State Transforms for Spaces of Connections, J. Funct. Anal. 135, 2 (1996), 519–551.
- 173. Abhay Ashtekar, Jerzy Lewandowski, Differential Geometry on the Space of Connections via Graphs and Projective Limits, J. Geom. Phys. 17, 3 (1995), 191–230.
- 174. Massimiliano Pontecorvo, On the Existence of Compact Scalar-Flat Kähler Surfaces, Rend. Mat. Appl. VII. Ser. 15, 4 (1995), 621–643.
- 175. Mark V. Losik, A Note on the Cohomology of the Complex of G–Invariant Forms on G–Manifolds (1994), 9 pp..
- 176. R. Dobrushin, O. Hryniv, Fluctuations of Shapes of Large Areas Under Paths of Random Walks, Probab. Theory Relat. Fields 105 (1996), 423–458.
- 177. Mircea Puta, The Completeness of some Hamiltonian Vector Fields on a Poisson Manifold, An. Univ. Timis., Ser. Mat.-Inform. **32**, **2** (1994), 93–98.
- 178. Mircea Puta, Three-Dimensional Real-Valued Maxwell-Bloch Equations with Controls (1994), 16 pp..
- 179. R. L. Dobrushin, A Mathematical Approach to Foundations of Statistical Mechanics (1994), 15 pp..
- A.V. Sobolev, Discrete Spectrum Asymptotics for the Schrödinger Operator with a Singular Potential and a Magnetic Field, Rev. Math. Phys. 8, 6 (1996), 861–903.
- Simeon Vugalter, Discrete Spectrum of a Three Particle Schrödinger Operator with a Homogoeneous Magnetic Field, J. Lond. Math. Soc. II. Ser. (1996).
- Simeon Vugalter, Absence of the Efimov Effect in a Homogenous Magnetic Field, Lett. Math. Phys. 37, 1 (1996), 79–94.
- 183. Editor: R.L. Dobrushin, Collection of Abstracts of Lectures given at the Seminar "On the Ising Model and Around it" Erwin Schrödinger Institute, Vienna October 17–24, 1994 (1994), 12 pp..
- László Erdős, Gaussian Decay of the Magnetic Eigenfunctions, Geom. Funct. Anal. 6, No. 2 (1996), 231–248.
- 185. P. Hájíček, Group Quantization of Parametrized Systems. I. Time Levels, J. Math. Phys. 36, 4612–4638.
- 186. Andreas Čap, Jan Slovák, Vladimír Souček, Invariant Operators on Manifolds with Almost Hermitian Symmetric Structures, I. Invariant Differentiation, Acta Math. Univ.Comenianae 66,1 (1997), 33–69.

1995

187. Roman Cherniha, Spherically Symmetric Solutions of Nonlinear Schrödinger Equations, J. of Nonlin.

Math. Phys. 4 (1997), 107-113.

- 188. Fabio Podestà, Andrea Spiro, Compact Quotients of Negatively Curved Riemannian Manifolds with Large Isometry Group (1995), 6 pp..
- 189. G.I. Kuznetsov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Yu.F. Smirnov, Graphical Theory of Representations of Orthogonal, Unitary and Symplectic Groups, Proc. of IX int. wrkshop, Hadronic Press, 1995, pp. 3–70, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- Piotr T. Chruściel, Nikolai S. Nadirashvili, All Electro-Vacuum Majumdar-Papapetrou Space-Times with Nonsingular Black Holes, Classical and Quantum Gravity 12, 3 (1995), L17–L23.
- 191. Chand Devchand, Viktor Ogievetsky, Self-Dual Supergravities (1995), 14 pp..
- 192. Jarolim Bureš, Special Invariant Operators I., Commentat. Math. Univ. Carol. 37, 1 (1996), 179–198.
- Nikolai Nadirashvili, Berger's Isoperimetric Problem and Minimal Immersions of Surfaces, Geom. Funct. Anal. 6, 5 (1996), 877–897.
- 194. Andreas Čap, Jan Slovák, Vladimír Souček, Invariant Operators on Manifolds with Almost Hermitian Symmetric Structures, II. Normal Cartan Connections, Acta. Math. Univ. Comenianae 66, 2 (1997), 203–220.
- 195. Editor: Friedrich Haslinger, Collection of Abstracts of all Lectures given at the Workshop on Complex Analysis, Vienna, February 20-24, 1995 (1995), 22 pp..
- 196. Evgenyi A. Ivanov, On the Harmonic Superspace Geometry of (4,4) Supersymmetric Sigma Models with Torsion (1995), 27 pp..
- 197. Piotr Z. Kobak, Explicit Doubly-Hermitian Metrics (1995), 6 pp..
- 198. Tadashi Taniguchi, Isolation Phenomena for Quaternionic Yang-Mills Connections (1995), 19 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 199. Takeo Ohsawa, On the Interpolation Problem in the Bergmann-Fock Space with Parameters (1995), 13 pp., Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 200. Andreas Kriegl, Peter W. Michor, Regular Infinite Dimensional Lie Groups, J. Lie Theory 7,1 (1997), 61–99.
- Michel Cahen, Simone Gutt, Andrzej Trautman, Pin Structures and the Modified Dirac Operator, J. Geom. Phys. 17, 3 (1995), 283–297.
- 202. Gabriele Vezzosi, Alexander M. Vinogradov, On Higher Analogs of the de Rham Complex (1995), 16 pp.
- 203. Vâjâitu Viorel, Connecting Points in Irrducible Stein Spaces by Irreducible Analytic Curves (1995), 10 pp..
- 204. Dénes Petz, Csaba Sudár, Geometries of Quantum States, J. Math. Phys. 37, 6 (1996), 2662–2673.
- Henrik Pedersen, Yat Sun Poon, Andrew Swann, Einstein-Weyl Deformations and Submanifolds, Int. J. Math. 7, 5 (1996), 705–719.
- 206. Mirta Iriondo, Edward Malec, Niall Ó Murchadha, The Constant Mean Curvature Slices of Asymptotically Flat Spherical Spacetimes (1995), 9 pp..
- 207. Edward Malec, Niall Ó Murchadha, Trapped Surfaces in Cosmological Spacetimes (1995), 15 pp..
- 208. Pavel Exner, The Absence of the Absolutely Continuous Spectrum for δ' Wannier–Stark Ladders, J. Math. Phys. 36, 9 (1995), 4561–4570.
- 209. Walter Thirring, What are the Quantum Mechanical Lyapunov Exponents, Low-dimensional models in statistical physics and quantum field theory. Proceedings of the 34. Internationale Universitaetswochen fuer Kern- und Teilchenphysik, Schladming, Austria, March 4-11, 1995 (H. Grosse et. al., eds.), Lect. Notes Phys. 469, Springer-Verlag, 1996, pp. 223-237.
- Michel Dubois–Violette, Peter W. Michor, Connections on Central Bimodules, J. Geom. Physics 20 (1996), 218–230.
- 211. Nikolai Nadirashvili, Calabi's Problem on Bounded Minimal Surface (1995), 5 pp..
- 212. Alexander V. Sobolev, On the Lieb-Thirring Estimates for the Pauli Operator, Duke Math. J. 82, 3 (1996), 607–635.
- Krzystof Galicki, Simon Salamon, Betti Numbers of 3–Sasakian Manifolds, Geom. Dedicata 63, 1 (1996), 45–68.
- Anton Yu. Alekseev, Volker Schomerus, Representation Theory of Chern-Simons Observables, Duke Math. J. 85, 2 (1996), 447–510.
- 215. David S. Tartakoff, Global (and Local) Analyticity for Second Order Operators Constructed from Rigid Vector Fields on Products of Tori, Trans. Am. Math. Soc. 348, 7 (1996), 2577–2583.
- 216. David S. Tartakoff, Local Analytic Hypoellipticity for $D_x^2 + D_y^2 + (x^{2m} + y^{2n})D_t^2$ (1995), 6 pp..
- 217. E. V. Damaskinsky, P. P. Kulish, M. A. Sokolov, Gauss Decompositions for Quantum Groups and Supergroups (1995), 26 pp..
- 218. Andriy Panasyuk, The Local Structure of some Complex Poisson Brackets (1995), 8 pp..
- 219. Th. Friedrich, I. Kath, A. Moroianu, U. Semmelmann, On Nearly Parallel G₂ structures (1995), 30 pp..
- N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Special Unitary Groups in Cayley-Klein Spaces, Hadronic Journal 18, 6 (1995), 541–561, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 221. N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Symplectic Groups in Cayley-Klein Spaces, Hadronic Journal 19, 4 (1996), 385–398, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 222. N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Special Orthogonal Groups in Cayley–Klein Spaces, Hadronic Journal 18,5, 451–483, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 223. N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Classification of Transitions between Groups in Cayley-Klein Spaces and Kinematic Groups, Hadronic Journal 19,4, 407–435, Not available via anonymous FTP.

- 224. Janusz Grabowski, Paweł Urbański, Tangent Lifts of Poisson and Related Structures, J. Physics A: Math. Gen. 28 (1995), 6743–6777.
- 225. Anton Yu. Alekseev, Peter Schaller, Thomas Strobl, The Topological G/G WZW Model in the Generalized Momentum Representation (1995), 38 pp..
- 226. Nevena Ilieva, Heide Narnhofer, A Fermi Field Algebra as Crossed Product, Sitzungsber., Abt. II, Oesterr. Akad. Wiss., Math.-Naturwiss. Kl. 205 (1996), 1997, pp. 13–33.
- 227. Andreas Čap, Jan Slovák, On Local Flatness of Manifolds with AHS-Structures, Supp. ai Rend. Circolo Matematico di Palermo, Ser. II 43 (1996), 95–101.
- 228. G. Cammarata, R. Coquereaux, Comments about Higgs Fields, Noncommutative Geometry and the Standard Model, Low-dimensional models in statistical physics and quantum field theory. Proceedings of the 34. Internationale Universitateswochen fuer Kern-und Teilchenphysik, Schladming, 1995., Lect. Notes Phys. 469, Springer-Verlag, 1996, pp. 27–50.
- 229. A. Stern, I. Yakushin, Lie-Poisson Deformation of the Poincarè Algebra, J. Math. Phys. 37, 4 (1996), 2053–2070.
- Dimitri V. Alekseevsky, Vincente Cortés, Isometry Groups of Homogeneous Quaternionic Kähler Manifolds (1995), 44 pp..
- 231. Lars Ernström, Toru Ohmoto, Shoji Yokura, On Topological Radon Transforms, J. of Pure and Applied Algebra, 17 pp. (to appear).
- 232. Friedrich Haslinger, Hardy Spaces on Model Domains (1995), 5 pp..
- 233. Yassen S. Stanev, Ivan T. Todorov, Monodromy Representations of the Mapping Class Group B_n for the su₂ Knizhnik–Zamolodchikov Equation, Low-dimensional models in statistical physics and quantum field theory. Proceedings of the 34. Internationale Universitateswochen fuer Kern-und Teilchenphysik, Schladming, Austria, 1995. (H. Grosse et. al., eds.), Lect. Notes Phys. 469, Springer–Verlag, 1996, pp. 201–222.
- Paolo Furlan, Ludmil K. Hadjiivanov, Ivan T. Todorov, Canonical Approach to the Quantum WZNW Model (1995), 27 pp..
- John Madore, Linear Connections on Fuzzy Manifolds, Classical Quantum Gravity 13, 8 (1996), 2109– 2119.
- A. Ibort, J. Marín–Solano, Coisotropic Regularization of Singular Lagrangians, J. Math. Phys. 36, 10 (1995), 5522–5539.
- 237. László Erdős, Rayleigh-type Isoperimetric Inequality with a Homogeneous Magnetic Field, Calc. Var. and PDE 4 (1996), 283–292.
- 238. Maria Hoffmann–Ostenhof, Thomas Hoffmann–Ostenhof, Nikolai Nadirashvili, Critical Sets of Smooth Solutions to Elliptic Equations in Dimension 3, Indiana Univ. Math. J. 45, 1 (1996), 15–37.
- G. Bimonte, E. Ercolessi, G. Landi, F. Lizzi, G. Sparano, P. Teotonio–Sobrinho, Lattices and their Continuum Limits, J. Geom. Phys. 20, 4 (1996), 318–328.
- 240. G. Bimonte, E. Ercolessi, G. Landi, F. Lizzi, G. Sparano, P. Teotonio–Sobrinho, Noncommutative Lattices and their Continuum Limits, J. Geom. Phys. 20, 4 (1996), 329-348.
- J. Grabowski, G. Marmo, A. Perelomov, A. Simoni, *Remarks on Virasoro and Kac–Moody algebras*, Int. J. Mod. Phys. A **11**, **28** (1996), 4969–4984.
- 242. A.M. Perelomov, On the Completeness of some Subsystems of q-deformed Coherent States, Helv. Phys. Acta 68, 6 (1995), 554–576.
- 243. S.G. Rajeev, O.T. Turgut, Poisson Brackets of Wilson Loops and Derivations of Free Algebras, J. Math. Phys. 37, 2 (1996), 637–649.
- 244. B. Jurčo, M. Schlieker, Quantized Lax Equations and Their Solutions, Commun. Math. Phys. 185, 2 (1997), 397–410.
- 245. A.M. Borodin, Asymptotics of the Jordan Type of Large Triangular Matrices over a Finite Field (1995), 19 pp..
- 246. A.M. Borodin, N.A. Rozhkovskaya, On a Super-Analog of the Schur-Weyl Duality (1995), 15 pp..
- 247. D.V. Alekseevsky, A.M. Perelomov, Poisson Brackets on Lie Algebras (1995), 31 pp..
- Edwin Langmann, Descent Equations of Yang-Mills Anomalies in Noncommutative Geometry, J. Geom. Phys. 22, 3 (1997), 259–279.
- Pavel Exner, A Duality between Schrödinger Operators on Graphs and Certain Jacobi Matrices, Ann. Inst. Henri Poincare, Phys. Theor. 66, 4 (1997), 359–371.
- 250. F. Gesztesy, H. Holden, On Trace Formulas for Schrödinger-Type Operators, Multiparticle quantum scattering with applications to nuclear, atomic and molecular physics. Proceedings of a workshop at the Univ. of Minnesota, Minneapolis, MN, USA, June 12–16, 1995. (D.G. Truhlar et. al., eds.), IMA Vol. Math. Appl. 89, Springer, 1997, pp. 121–145.
- 251. Piotr Bizoń, Tadeusz Chmaj, Harmonic Maps between Spheres, Proc. R. Soc. Lond., Ser. A 453, 1957 (1997), 403-415.
- 252. M.O. Katanaev, *Euclidean Two-dimensional Gravity with Torsion*, J. Math. Phys. **38(2)** (1997), 946–980, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 253. Reinhold Meise, B. Alan Taylor, Dietmar Vogt, Continuous Linear Right Inverses for Partial Differential Operators of Order 2 and Fundamental Solutions in Half Spaces, Manuscr. Math. 90, 4 (1996), 449–464.
- Edwin Langmann, Jouko Mickelsson, Scattering Matrix in External Field Problems, J. Math. Phys. 37, 8 (1996), 3933–3953.
- 255. Alexandre Kirillov, Geometric Approach to Discrete Series of Unireps for Vir. (1995), 12 pp..

- 256. Jouko Mickelsson, Schwinger Terms, Gerbes, and Operator Residues, Symplectic singularities and geometry of gauge fields. Proceedings of the Banach Center symposium on differential geometry and mathematical physics 1995 (R. Budzynski et. al., eds.), Banach Cent. Publ. 39, Polish Academy of Sciences, 1997, pp. 345–361.
- 257. Joseph Krasilshchik, Hamiltonian Formalism and Supersymmetry for Nonlinear Differential Equations (1995), 61 pp..
- 258. George D. Raikov, Asymptotic Bounds on the Number of the Eigenvalues in the Gaps of the 2D magnetic Schrödinger Operator (1995), 13 pp..
- 259. Mario Salerno, The Hubbard Model on a Complete Graph: Exact Analytical Results (1995), 8 pp..
- 260. I.S. Krasil'shchik, Notes on Coverings and Bäcklund Transformations (1995), 14 pp..
- 261. Hideo Kozono, Yoshiaki Maeda, Hisashi Naito, On ε -regularity for the Yang-Mills-Higgs Heat Flow on \mathbb{R}^3 (1995), 29 pp..
- Nikolaj Nadirashvili, Hadamard's and Calabi-Yau's conjectures on negatively curved and minimal surfaces, Invent. Math. 126, 3 (1996), 457–465.
- 263. Maria Hoffmann-Ostenhof, Thomas Hoffmann-Ostenhof, Nikolaj Nadirashvili, The nodal line of the second eigenfunction of the Laplacian in \mathbb{R}^2 can be closed, Duke Math J., 9 pp. (to appear).
- 264. Pavel Exner, Ralf Gawlista, Band Spectra of Rectangular Graph Superlattices, Phys. Rev. B 53 (1996), 7275–7285.
- 265. Ingo Peter, Quantum Field Theory in Curved Space-Times with an Application to the Reduced Model of the deSitter Universe (1995), 80 pp..
- 266. Robert Beig, Piotr T. Chruściel, Killing Vectors in Asymptotically Flat Space-Times: I. Asymptotically Translational Killing Vectors and the Rigid Positive Energy Theorem, J. Math. Phys. 37, 4 (1996), 1939– 1961.
- 267. Heide Narnhofer, Ingo Peter, Walter Thirring, How Hot Is the de Sitter Space? (1995), 15 pp..
- Robert M. Burton, Karma Dajani, Ronald Meester, Entropy for Random Group Actions (1995), 22 pp..
 D. Kastler, J. Madore, D. Testard, Connections on Bimodules in Non-Commutative Geometry I, Geometry
- and nature: in memory of W. K. Clifford. July 30–August 5, 1995, Madeira, Portugal (H. Nencka et. al., eds.), Contemp. Math. 203, Amer. Math. Soc., 1997, pp. 159–164, Not available via anonymous FTP.
- 270. Stefan K. Kehrein, Andreas Mielke, Theory of the Anderson Impurity Model: The Schrieffer-Wolff Transformation Re-examined (1995), 31 pp..
- 271. Svetlana Ya. Jitomirskaya, Yoram Last, Dimensional Hausdorff Properties of Singular Continuous Spectra (1995), 12 pp..
- 272. Vladimir Buslaev, Alexander Fedotov, On the Point Spectrum of Diffirence Schrödinger Operators (1995), 9 pp..
- 273. Robert M. Burton, Charles-Ed. Pfister, Jeffrey E. Steif, The Variational Principle for Gibbs States Fails on Trees (1995), 16 pp..
- 274. Fabio Benatti, Heide Narnhofer, Armin Uhlmann, Optimal Decompositions of Quantum States with Respect to Entropy (1995), 24 pp..
- 275. S. Albeverio, L. Pastur, M. Shcherbina, On Asymptotic Properties of Certain Orthogonal Polynomials (1995), 14 pp..
- 276. L. Pastur, Eigenvalue Distribution of Random Matrices: Some Recent Results (1995), 12 pp..
- 277. Dan Burghelea, Leonid Friedlander, Thomas Kappeler, Torsion for Manifolds with Boundary and Gluing Formulas (1995), 58 pp..
- 278. M.O. Katanaev, W. Kummer, H. Liebl, Geometric interpretation and Classification of Global Solutions in Generalized Dilaton Gravity, Phys. Rev. D 53(10) (1996), 5609–5618.
- Yoshiaki Maeda, Steven Rosenberg, Philippe Tondeur, Minimal Orbits of Metrics and Elliptic Operators (1995), 41 pp..
- 280. Editor: Yoram Last, Collection of Abstracts of all Talks given at the Workshop "Singular Spectra", ESI, October 23–28, 1995 (1995), 13 pp..
- 281. L. Chayes, R. Kotecký, An Intermediate Phase for a Classical Continuum Model (1995), 10 pp..
- 282. Mark V. Losik, Diagonal Cohomology of the Lie Algebra of Vector Fields (1995), 16 pp..
- 283. B.S. Nahapetian, A.N. Petrossian, Martingale-Difference Random Fields Limit Theorems and Some Applications (1995), 22 pp..
- J. Tafel, J. Śniatycki, Nonlinear Semigroups and the Yang-Mills Equations with the Metallic Boundary Conditions (1995), 18 pp..
- 285. Michel Dubois-Violette, Some Aspects of Noncommutative Differential Geometry (1995), 27 pp..
- 286. M. Faber, A. N. Ivanov, W. Kainz, N.I. Troitskaya, Dual Higgs Model with Dual Dirac Strings (1995), 25 pp..
- 287. A. N. Ivanov, N.I. Troitskaya, On Heavy to Heavy Meson Transitions and Hidden Reefs of Infinite Heavy – Quark Mass Limit (1995), 35 pp..
- 288. M. Faber, A. N. Ivanov, W. Kainz, N.I. Troitskaya, Nambu-Jona-Lasinio Version of Magnetic Monopole Physics with Dual Dirac Strings (1995), 15 pp..
- 289. Hideki Omori, Yoshiaki Maeda, Naoya Miyazaki, Akira Yoshioka, Noncommutative 3-sphere: A model of noncommutative contact algebras (1995), 26 pp..
- 290. M. Dubois-Violette, J. Madore, T. Masson, J. Mourad, On Curvature in Noncommutative Geometry, J. Math. Phys. 37, 8 (1996), 4089–4102.
- 291. Lorenzo Sadun, Joseph E. Avron, Adiabatic Curvature and the S-Matrix (1995), 19 pp..

- 25
- 292. A. N.Ivanov, N. I. Troitskaya, M. Faber, H. Oberhummer, On the relativistic field theory model of the deuteron II (1995), 31 pp..
- Elisa Ercolessi, Giovanni Landi, Paulo Teotonio-Sobrinho, K-Theory of Noncommutative Lattices (1995), 26 pp..
- 294. Michael Stone, The Magnus Force on Skyrmions in Ferromagnets and Quantum Hall Systems (1995), 13 pp..

1996

- 295. Alexander Kiselev, Some Examples in One-dimensional "Geometric" Scattering (1996), 17 pp..
- 296. Thierry Masson, Géométrie non commutative et applications à la théorie des champs (1996), 245 pp..
- 297. András Sütő, On the Flux-phase Problem (1996), 16 pp..
- 298. Carlangelo Liverani, Central Limit Theorem for Deterministic Systems (1996), 18 pp..
- A.P. Balachandran, G. Bimonte, G. Landi, F. Lizzi, P. Teotonio-Sobrinho, Lattice Gauge Fields and Noncommutative Geometry (1996), 34 pp..
- Klaus Schmidt, On the Cohomology of Algebraic Z^d-actions with Values in Compact Lie Groups (1996), 20 pp..
- 301. Klaus Schmidt, Invariant Cocycles, Random Tilings and the Super-K and Strong Markov Properties, Trans. Amer. Math. Soc. 349 (1997), 2812–2825.
- 302. Alexander Moroz, Upper and Lower Bounds on the Partition Function of the Hofstadter Model, Mod. Phys. Lett. B, 9 pp. (to appear).
- 303. Editors: Walter Thirring, Thomas Hudetz, Stepan Moskaliuk, Collection of Abstracts of all Lectures given at the XII International Hutsulian Workshop "Methods of Mathematical Physics" Rakhiv, Ukraine, September 11–17, 1995 (1996), 23 pp..
- 304. Peter W. Michor, Addendum to "Basic Differential Forms for Actions of Lie Groups", appeared as "Basic Differential Forms for Actions of Lie Groups. II", Proc. AMS 125 (1997), 2175–2177.
- 305. M. Krishna, V.S. Sunder, Schrödinger Operators with Fairly Arbitrary Spectral Features (1996), 24 pp..
- 306. J. Sjöstrand, G. Vodev, Asymptotics of the Number of Rayleigh Resonances (1996), 18 pp..
- 307. F. Schein, P.C. Aichelburg, W. Israel, String Supported Wormhole Spacetimes and Causality Violations (1996), 12 pp..
- 308. Vincenzo Grecchi, Andrea Sacchetti, Lifetime of the Wannier–Stark Resonances and Perturbation Theory (1996), 26 pp..
- 309. G. Bimonte, A. Stern, P. Vitale, $SU_q(2)$ Lattice Gauge Theory (1996), 26 pp..
- 310. S.G. Rajeev, A. Stern, P. Vitale, Integrability of the Wess-Zumino-Witten Model as a Non-Ultralocal Theory (1996), 13 pp..
- Giuseppe Marmo, Giovanna Mendella, Włodzimierz M. Tulczyjew, Constrained Hamiltonian Systems as Implicit Differential Equations (1996), 13 pp..
- 312. N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Irreducible Representations of Cayley-Klein Unitary Algebras (1996), 31 pp..
- Pierluigi Contucci, Andreas Knauf, The Low Activity Phase of Some Dirichlet Series, J. Math. Phys., 27 pp. (to appear).
- 314. Dmitri Alekseevsky, Andreas Kriegl, Mark Losik, Peter Michor, *Choosing Roots of Polynomials Smoothly*, Israel J. Math., 26 pp. (to appear).
- 315. H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, Finite Gauge Model on the Truncated Sphere (1996), 5 pp..
- 316. H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, Towards Finite Quantum Field Theory in Non-Commutative Geometry (1996), 16 pp..
- 317. H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, Field Theory on a Supersymmetric Lattice (1996), 32 pp..
- H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, Topologically Nontrivial Field Configurations in Noncommutative Geometry, Comm. Math. Phys. 178 (1996), 507–526.
- H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, Simple Field Theoretic Models on Noncommutative Manifolds (1996), 15 pp..
- 320. H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, On Finite 4D Quantum Field Theory in Non-Commutative Geometry, Comm. Math. Phys. 180 (1996), 429–438.
- 321. H. Grosse, C. Klimčík, P. Prešnajder, N=2 Superalgebra and Non-Commutative Geometry (1996), 11 pp..
- 322. Fernando Falceto, Krzysztof Gawędzki, Unitarity of the Knizhnik-Zamolodchikov-Bernard Connection and the Bethe Ansatz for the Elliptic Hitchin Systems (1996), 24 pp..
- 323. O. Babelon, D. Bernard, F.A. Smirnov, Quantization of Solitons and the Restricted Sine-Gordon Model (1996), 29 pp..
- 324. V. Futorny, V. Mazorchuk, Structure of α-stratified Modules for Finite-dimensional Lie Algebras II. BGGresolution in the Simply-laced Case (1996), 12 pp..
- 325. V. Futorny, Irreducible Level Zero $A_n^{(1)}$ -Modules with Finite-dimensional Weight Spaces (1996), 15 pp..
- 326. J. Bochnak, W. Kucharz, Vector Bundles, Algebraic Morphisms, and Realification of Complex Algebraic Varieties (1996), 40 pp..
- 327. Anton Yu. Alekseev, Ludwig D. Faddeev, Jürg Fröhlich, Volker Schomerus, *Representation Theory of Lattice Current Algebras* (1996), 34 pp..

- 328. D.V. Alekseevsky, A.M. Perelomov, Poisson and Symplectic Structures on Lie Algebras. I., J. Geom. Phys. 22, 3 (1997), 191–211.
- 329. Robert Beig, Piotr T. Chruściel, Killing Initial Data, Classical Quantum Gravity 14, 1A (1997), A83–A92.
- 330. I. Krichever, O. Lipan, P. Wiegmann, A. Zabrodin, Quantum Integrable Models and Discrete Classical Hirota Equations (1996), 33 pp..
- 331. V. Popkov, B. Nienhuis, Phase Diagram of 3D Multi-Layered Solvable 6-Vertex Model (1996), 20 pp..
- Maxim Nazarov, Yangians and Capelli Identities, Kirillov's seminar on representation theory (G.I. Olshanski, eds.), Amer. Math. Soc. Transl. 181, 1997, pp. 139–164.
- Andrei Okounkov, Anatoly Vershik, A New Approach to Representation Theory of Symmetric Groups (1996), 21 pp..
- 334. E.I. Gordon, A.M. Vershik, The Groups, Locally Embeddeble into the Class of Finite Groups (1996), 7 pp..
- L. Bonora, S. Krivonos, A. Sorin, Towards the Construction of N=2 Supersymmetric Integrable Hierarchies (1996), 18 pp..
- 336. A. Levin, M. Olshanetsky, Double Coset Construction of Moduli Space of Holomorphic Bundles and Hitchin Systems (1996), 19 pp..
- Nándor Simányi, Domokos Szász, The Boltzmann-Sinai Ergodic Hypothesis for Hard Ball Systems (1996), 34 pp..
- 338. Toby N. Bailey, Michael G. Eastwood, Zero-energy Fields on Real Projective Space, Geometrieae Dedicata, 11 pp. (to appear).
- 339. Manfred Salmhofer, Improved Power Counting and Fermi Surface Renormalization (1996), 23 pp..
- A.L. Onishchik, A.A. Serov, On Isotropic Super-Grassmannians of Maximal Type Associated with an Odd Bilinear Form (1996), 18 pp..
- 341. Ivan Penkov, Characters of Strongly Generic Irreducible Lie Superalgebra Representations (1996), 34 pp..
- 342. Joseph A. Wolf, Flag Manifolds and Representation Theory (1996), 50 pp..
- 343. H. Narnhofer, W. Thirring, Why Schrödinger's Cat is Most Likely to be Either Alive or Dead (1996), 9 pp..
- 344. Vladimir L. Popov, On Closedness of Orbits of Algebraic Groups (1996), 7 pp..
- 345. Hieu Nguyen, Weakly Symmetric Spaces and Bounded Symmetric Domains (1996), 16 pp..
- 346. Petr Holický, Miloš Zahradník, Stratified Low Temperature Phases of Stratified Spin Models. A General Pirogov Sinai Approach (1996), 65 pp..
- 347. Anton Bovier, Miloš Zahradník, The Low-Temperature Phase of Kac-Ising Models (1996), 19 pp..
- Yu.A. Neretin, Hinges and Geometric Constructions of Boundaries of Riemann Symmetric Spaces (1996), 24 pp..
- 349. Boris Feigin, Feodor Malikov, Modular Functor and Representation Theory of $\hat{\mathfrak{sl}}_2$ at a Rational Level (1996), 52 pp..
- 350. M. Asorey, F. Falceto, Vacuum Nodes in QCD at $\theta = \pi$: Exact Results (1996), 12 pp..
- 351. S. Deser, M. Henneaux, C. Teitelboim, *Electric-Magnetic Black Hole Duality* (1996), 8 pp..
- Italo Guarneri, Singular Continuous Spectra and Discrete Wave Packet Dynamics, J. Math. Phys. 37 (1996), no. 10, 5195–5206.
- 353. Alice Fialowski, Dmitry Fuchs, Singular Deformations of Lie Algebras on an Example (1996), 18 pp..
- 354. Alexei Rudakov, Algebraic Stability: Schur Lemma and Canonical Filtrations (1996), 10 pp..
- 355. R. Dobrushin, O. Hryniv, Fluctuations of the Phase Boundary in the 2D Ising Ferromagnet (1996), 56 pp..
- 356. Elisa Ercolessi, Giovanni Landi, Paulo Teotonio-Sobrinho, Noncommutative Lattices and the Algebras of their Continuous Functions (1996), 32 pp..
- 357. Joseph A. Wolf, Roger Zierau, Linear Cycle Spaces in Flag Domains, I: Flags Corresponding to the Classical Groups (1996), 15 pp..
- 358. Evgeni Korotyaev, The estimates of Periodic Potentials in Terms of Effective Masses (1996), 19 pp..
- 359. Evgeni Korotyaev, The Uniform Estimates for the Hill Operator (1996), 21 pp..
- 360. V.A. Malyshev, F.M. Spieksma, Dynamics in Binary Neural Networks with a Finite Number of Patterns. Part 1. General Picture of the Asynchronous Zero Temperature Dynamics. (1996), 35 pp..
- A.L. Onishchik, A Construction of Non-split Supermanifolds, Ann. Global Anal. Geom. (1998), 21 pp. (to appear).
- 362. P. Furlan, A.Ch. Ganchev, V.B. Petkova, sl(2) Admissible Representations Fusion Transformation and Local Correlators, Nucl. Phys. B 491 (1997), 635–658.
- 363. Abhay Ashtekar, Alejandro Corichi, Photon Inner-product and the Gauss Linking Number (1996), 14 pp..
- 364. A. Ashtekar, J. Lewandowski, D. Marolf, J. Mourão, T. Thiemann, SU(N) Quantum Yang-Mills Theory in Two Dimensions: A Complete Solution (1996), 36 pp..
- 365. Abhay Ashtekar, Jiří Bičák, Bernd G. Schmidt, Asymptotic Structure of Symmetry Reduced General Relativity (1996), 39 pp..
- 366. Abhay Ashtekar, Jiří Bičák, Bernd G. Schmidt, Behavior of Einstein-Rosen Waves at Null Infinity (1996), 16 pp..
- 367. Abhay Ashtekar, Jerzy Lewandowski, Quantum Theory of Geometry I: Area Operators, Classical Quantum Gravity 14, 1A (1997), A55–A81.
- 368. Hugo Fort, Rodolfo Gambini, Jorge Pullin, Lattice Knot Theory and Quantum Gravity in the Loop Representation (1996), 23 pp..
- 369. Carlo Rovelli, Loop Quantum Gravity and Black Hole Physics (1996), 33 pp..

- 370. Bert Schroer, Notes on the Wigner Representation Theory of the Poicaré Group, Localization and Statistics (1996), 28 pp..
- 371. Bert Schroer, Motivations and Physical Aims of Algebraic QFT (1996), 40 pp..
- 372. Simon Gindikin, Penrose transform at flag domains (1996), 10 pp..
- 373. Michael P. Reisenberger, A Left-handed Simplicial Action for Euclidean General Relativity, Classical and Quantum Gravity, 25 pp. (to appear).
- 374. Terrence M. Adams, Karl E. Petersen, Binomial-coefficient Multiples of Irrationals (1996), 10 pp..
- 375. Shahn Majid, Classification of Bicovariant Differential Calculi (1996), 25 pp..
- 376. Michael Eastwood, Jan Slovák, Semi-holonomic Verma Modules, J. of Algebra, 27 pp. (to appear).
- 377. Klaus Schmidt, Tilings, Fundamental Cocycles and Fundamental Groups of Symbolic \mathbb{Z}^d -actions, Ergodic Theory and Dynamical Systems, 57 pp. (to appear).
- 378. Jacek Pawełczyk, Rigid String Instantons are Pseudo-holomorphic Curves (1996), 19 pp..
- 379. Jerzy Lewandowski, Jacek Wiśniewski, 2+1 Sector of 3+1 Gravity (1996), 12 pp..
- 380. V.M. Buchstaber, V.Z. Enolskii, D.V. Leikin, *Hyperelliptic Kleinian Functions and Applications*, Proceedings of S.P.Novikov seminar II, AMS Translations, Amer. Math. Soc., 1997, pp. 33 pp. (to appear).
- 381. Simon Gindikin, Real Integral Geometry and Complex Analysis (1996), 29 pp..
- 382. Pierre Gaspard, Entropy Production in Open Volume-Preserving Systems (1996), 29 pp..
- 383. Michael Loss, Bernd Thaller, Optimal Heat Kernel Estimates for Schrödinger Operators with Magnetic Fields in Two Dimensions, Commun. Math. Phys. 186, 1 (1997), 95–107.
- 384. R.A. Minlos, E.A. Pechersky, Yu.M. Suhov, *Remarks on the Life and Research of Roland L. Dobrushin* (1996), 45 pp..
- 385. V. Gerasimenko, D. Petrina, Rigorous Derivation of Generalized Kinetic Equation (1996), 7 pp..
- 386. Harald Grosse, Edwin Langmann, Ernst Raschhofer, The Luttinger-Schwinger Model (1996), 19 pp..
- 387. József Fritz, Carlangelo Liverani, Stefano Olla, Reversibility in Infinite Hamiltonian Systems with Conservative Noise (1996), 16 pp..
- 388. Gerhard Keller, Mixing for Finite Systems of Coupled Tent Maps (1996), 8 pp..
- Anton Y. Alekseev, Andreas Recknagel, Volker Schomerus, Generalization of the Knizhnik-Zamolodchikov-Equations, Lett. Math. Phys. 41, 2 (1997), 169–180.
- 390. A.O. Barvinsky, Geometry of the Dirac Quantization of Constrained Systems (1996), 20 pp..
- 391. D.P. Zhelobenko, Hypersymmetries of Extremal Equations (1996), 14 pp..
- 392. Kirill V. Krasnov, Geometrical Entropy from the Loop Quantum Gravity (1996), 21 pp..
- 393. Abhay Ashtekar, Large Quantum Gravity Effects: Unexpected Limitations of the Classical Theory (1996), 8 pp..
- 394. Robert Beig, Piotr T. Chruściel, The Isometry Groups of Asymptotically Flat, Asymptotically Empty Space-Times with Timelike ADM Four-Momentum, Commun. Math. Phys. 188 (1997), 585–597.
- 395. Hideki Omori, Yoshiaki Maeda, Naoya Miyazaki, Akira Yoshioka, Noncommutative Contact Algebras (1996), 6 pp..
- Ostap Hryniv, Rostyslav Hryniv, Square Ice: Justification of Thermodynamic Limit and Some Properties of the Transfer Matrix (1996), 21 pp..
- 397. Krzysztof A. Meissner, Symmetries of Higher-Order String Gravity Actions (1996), 10 pp..
- 398. Maxim Nazarov, Capelli Identities for Lie Superalgebras, Ann. Sci. Ec. Norm. Sup. 30 (1997), 847-872.
- 399. Janusz Grabowski, Z-graded Extensions of Poisson Brackets, Rev. Math. Phys. 9, 1 (1997), 1–27.
- 400. Ostap Hrvniv, On a Conditional Invariance Principle for Random Walks (1996), 11 pp...
- 401. Klaus Schmidt, Tail-Fields of Products of Random Variables and Ergodic Equivalence Relations (1996), 16 pp..
- 402. Peter W. Michor, Alexandre M. Vinogradov, n-ary Lie and Associative Algebras, Rend. Sem. Mat. Univ. Pol. Torino, 18 pp. (to appear).
- Andreas Kriegl, Peter Michor, Product Preserving Functors of Infinite Dimensional Manifolds, Archivum Mathematicum (Brno) 32,4 (1996), 289–306.
- Dmitri V. Alekseevski, Stefano Marchiafava, Massimiliano Pontecorvo, Compatible Complex Structures on Almost Quaternionic Manifolds (1996), 18 pp..
- 405. Andreas Čap, Translation of Natural Operators on Manifolds with AHS-Structures, Archivum Mathematicum (Brno) 32,4 (1996), 249–266.
- 406. Peter W. Michor, The Jacobi Flow, Rend. Sem. Mat. Univ. Pol. Torino, 7 pp. (to appear).
- 407. Victor G. Kac, Ivan T. Todorov, Affine Orbifolds and Rational Conformal Field Theory Extensions of $W_{1+\infty}$ (1996), 64 pp..
- 408. S. N. Melikhov, S. Momm, Analytic solutions of convolution equations on convex sets with an obstacle in the boundary (1996), 26 pp..
- 409. Carlangelo Liverani, Flows, Random Perturbations and Rate of Mixing (1996), 28 pp..
- 410. Nicolai Chernov, Entropy, Lyapunov Exponents and Mean Free Path for Billiards (1996), 26 pp..
- 411. Douglas Lind, Klaus Schmidt, Homoclinic Points of Algebraic Z^d-Actions (1996), 29 pp..
- 412. N. Chernov, R. Markarian, S. Troubetzkoy, Conditionally Invariant Measures for Anosov Maps with Small Holes (1996), 27 pp..
- 413. Carlangelo Liverani, Benoit Saussol, Sandro Vaienti, Conformal Measure and Decay of Correlation for Covering Weighted Systems (1996), 20 pp..
- 414. Ph. Choquard, Lagrangian Formulation of Nosé-Hoover and of Isokinetic Dynamics (1996), 7 pp..

1997

415. D.V. Alekseevsky, Flag Manifolds (1997), 32 pp..

- 416. S. Ruffo, Lyapunov Spectra in Spatially Extended Systems (1997), 23 pp..
- 417. R. Loll, Further Results on Geometric Operators in Quantum Gravity (1997), 25 pp..
- 418. R. Loll, *Latticing Quantum Gravity*, Proc. of the 2nd Conference on Constrained Dynamics and Quantum Gravity, Santa Margherita, Italy, pp. 7 pp. (to appear).
- D.V. Alekseevsky, S. Marchiafava, M. Pontecorvo, Compatible Almost Complex Structures on Quaternion– Kähler Manifolds (1997), 33 pp..
- 420. Editors: Peter Aichelburg, Abhay Ashtekar, Abstracts of Seminars given at the Workshop on Mathematical Problems of Quantum Gravity held at the Erwin Schrödinger Institute, Vienna (1997), 26 pp..
- 421. Ari Laptev, Dirichlet and Neumann Eigenvalue Problems on Domains in Euclidean Spaces (1997), 13 pp..
- 422. J. Gegenberg, G. Kunstatter, T. Strobl, Edge States and Entropy of 2d Black Holes (1997), 13 pp..
- 423. A. Bäcker, N. Chernov, Generating Partitions for Two-dimensional Hyperbolic Maps (1997), 12 pp..
- 424. A. Katok, R. J. Spatzier, Differential Rigidity of Anosov Actions of Higher Rank Abelian Groups and Algebraic Lattice Actions, Proc. of the Steklov Institute, Vol. 216, pp. 32 pp. (to appear).
- 425. O. Hryniv, On Local Behaviour of the Phase Separation Line in the 2D Ising Model (1997), 21 pp..
- 426. Henrik Pedersen, Yat Sun Poon, Andrew Swann, Hypercomplex Structures Associated to Quaternionic Manifolds (1997), 21 pp..
- 427. Maciej Wojtkowski, Carlangelo Liverani, Conformally Symplectic Dynamics and Symmetry of the Lyapunov Spectrum (1997), 15 pp..
- 428. Mariusz Lemańczyk, Entropy of Gaussian Actions for Countable Abelian Groups (1997), 9 pp..
- 429. Maciej P. Wojtkowski, Hamiltonian Systems with Linear Potential (1997), 34 pp...
- 430. John C. Baez, Kirill V. Krasnov, Quantization of Diffeomorphism-Invariant Theories with Fermions (1997), 28 pp..
- 431. S. Moskaliuk (Editor), Collection of Abstracts of the Lectures which will be given at the International Workshop "Mathematical Physics — today, Priority Technologies — for tomorrow" 12–17 May 1997, Kiev, Ukraine (1997), 38 pp..
- 432. Paweł Nurowski, On a Certain Formulation of the Einstein Equations (1997), 7 pp..
- 433. T.B. Ward, Almost All S-Integer Dynamical Systems Have Many Periodic Points (1997), 16 pp..
- 434. L.J. Mason, The Asymptotic Structure of Algebraically Special Space-times (1997), 10 pp..
- 435. Simon Gindikin, SO(1;n)-twistors (1997), 10 pp..
- 436. Nándor Simányi, Domokos Szász, Hard Ball Systems Are Fully Hyperbolic (1997), 48 pp..
- 437. A. Latz, H. van Beijeren, J. R. Dorfman, Lyapunov Spectrum and the Conjugate Pairing Rule for a Thermostated Random Lorentz Gas: Kinetic Theory, Phys. Rev. Lett. 78 (1997), 207–210.
- 438. Thierry Dauxois, Stefano Ruffo, Alessandro Torcini, Modulational Lyapunov Estimate for FPU-chains (1997), 13 pp..
- Manfred Einsiedler, Klaus Schmidt, Markov Partitions and Homoclinic Points of Algebraic Z^d-actions (1997), 21 pp..
- 440. N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Irreducible Representations of Cayley-Klein Orthogonal Algebras (1997), 20 pp..
- 441. Robert Bartnik, The Structure of Spherically Symmetric su(n) Yang-Mills Fields (1997), 25 pp..
- 442. C. Appert, M.H. Ernst, Chaos Properties and Localization in Lorentz Lattice Gases (1997), 49 pp..
- 443. N.A. Gromov, S.S. Moskaliuk, Induced Representations of Cayley-Klein Orthogonal Groups (1997), 16 pp..
- 444. Eduardo Canale, Roberto Markarian, Sylvie Oliffson Kamphorst, Sônia Pinto de Carvalho, A Lower Bound for Chaos on the Elliptical Stadium (1997), 13 pp..
- 445. Lai-Sang Young, Statistical Properties of Dynamical Systems With Some Hyperbolicity (1997), 61 pp..
- 446. H.J. Borchers, Half-sided Translations in Connection with Modular Groups as a Tool in Quantum Field Theory (1997), 17 pp..
- 447. G. Rozenblum, M. Solomyak, CLR-estimate for the Generators of Positivity Preserving and Positively Dominated Semigroups (1997), 19 pp..
- 448. Dirk Schlingemann, Construction of Kink Sectors for Two-Dimensional Quantum Field Theory Models (An Algebraic Approach) (1997), 46 pp..
- 449. Hendrik Grundling, C.A. Hurst, Constrained Dynamics for Quantum Mechanics I. Restricting a Particle to a Surface (1997), 48 pp..
- 450. Andreas Čap, Hermann Schichl, Parabolic Geometries and Canonical Cartan Connections (1997), 37 pp..
- 451. Simonetta Frittelli, Ezra T. Newman, Poincaré Pseudo-symmetries in Asymptotically Flat Spacetimes (1997), 10 pp..
- 452. D. V. Alekseevsky, J. Grabowski, G. Marmo, P. W. Michor, *Completely Integrable Systems: A Generalization*, Mod. Phys. A, 15 pp. (to appear).
- Peter W. Michor, Hermann Schichl, No Slices on the Space of Generalized Connections, Acta Math. Univ. Commenianae 66, 2 (1997), 221–228.
- 454. Peter W. Michor, Tudor Ratiu, On the Geometry of the Virasoro-Bott Group, J. Lie Theory, 16 pp. (to appear).
- 455. Leonid A. Bunimovich, Jan Rehacek, How High-Dimensional Stadia Look Like (1997), 25 pp..
- 456. Abhay Ashtekar, Troy A. Schilling, Geometrical Formulation of Quantum Mechanics (1997), 41 pp..

- 457. Rodolfo Gambini, Jorge Griego, Jorge Pullin, Chern-Simons States in Spin-Network Quantum Gravity (1997), 8 pp..
- 458. Rodolfo Gambini, Jorge Pullin, Large Quantum Gravity Effects: Backreaction on Matter (1997), 5 pp..
- 459. J.M. Aroca, Hugo Fort, Rodolfo Gambini, On the Path Integral Loop Representation of (2+1) Lattice Non-abelian Gauge Theories (1997), 16 pp..
- 460. R. Beig, N. Ó Murchadha, Late Time Behaviour of the Maximal Slicing of the Schwarzschild Black Hole (1997), 19 pp..
- 461. K.P. Tod, Four-dimensional D'Atri Spaces with Extra Conditions (1997), 10 pp..
- 462. Ingemar Bengtsson, Ted Jacobson, Degenerate Metric Phase Boundaries, Classical Quantum Gravity 14 (1997), 3109–3121.
- 463. Michael P. Reisenberger, Carlo Rovelli, "Sum over Surfaces" Form of Loop Quantum Gravity (1997), 27 pp..
- 464. Paweł Nurowski, Elliptic Fibrations Associated with the Einstein Spacetimes (1997), 15 pp..
- 465. D. Alekseevsky, J. Grabowski, G. Marmo, P.W. Michor, *Poisson Structures on Double Lie Groups*, J. of Geometry and Physics, 37 pp. (to appear).
- 466. D.V. Alekseevsky, F. Podestà, Compact Cohomogeneity One Riemannian Manifolds of Positive Euler Characteristic and Quaternionic Kähler Manifolds (1997), 32 pp..
- 467. Robert Beig, László B. Szabados, On a Global Conformal Invariant of Initial Data Sets, Classical Quantum Gravity 14 (1997), 3091–3107.
- 468. H. van Beijeren, J.R. Dorfman, H. A. Posch, Ch. Dellago, *The Kolmogorov–Sinai Entropy for Dilute Gases in Equilibrium*, Phys. Rev. E, 10 pp. (to appear).
- Elliott H. Lieb, Jakob Yngvason, The Physics and Mathematics of the Second Law of Thermodynamics (1997), 90 pp..
- 470. Andrzej Trautman, On Complex Structures in Physics (1997), 16 pp..
- 471. Jerzy F. Plebański, Maciej Przanowski, A New Version of the Heavenly Equation, Engelbert Schucking Festschrift, Springer, pp. 26 pp. (to appear).
- 472. James B. Hartle, Donald Marolf, Comparing Formulations of Generalized Quantum Mechanics for Reparametrization-Invariant Systems (1997), 21 pp..
- 473. Donald Marolf, José Mourão, Thomas Thiemann, The Status of Diffeomorphism Superselection in Euclidean 2+1 Gravity (1997), 14 pp..
- 474. Gary T. Horowitz, Donald Marolf, Where is the Information Stored in Black Holes? (1997), 21 pp..
- 475. V. Moncrief, J. E. Nelson, Constants of Motion and the Conformal Anti de Sitter Algebra in (2+1)-Dimensional Gravity, Int. J. Mod. Phys. D 6, 5 (1997).
- 476. A.O. Barvinsky, A.Yu. Kamenshchik, Quantum Origin of the Early Inflationary Universe (1997), 44 pp..
- 477. Paweł Nurowski, Maciej Przanowski, A Four Dimensional Example of Ricci Flat Metric Admitting Almost-Kahler Non-Kahler Structure (1997), 8 pp..
- 478. J. Madore, Gravity on Fuzzy Space-Time (1997), 31 pp..
- 479. Guosong Zhao, Symmetric Covariant Tensor Fields of Order 2 on Pseudo-Riemannian Manifolds (1997), 17 pp..
- 480. M. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, T. Hoffmann-Ostenhof, N. Nadirashvili, On the Nodal Line Conjecture, Contemp. Math., 16 pp. (to appear).
- M. Hoffmann–Ostenhof, T. Hoffmann–Ostenhof, N. Nadirashvili, Critical Sets of Smooth Solutions to Elliptic Equations (1997), 18 pp..
- 482. Simon Gindikin, Tube Domains in Stein Symmetric Spaces (1997), 15 pp..
- 483. Jürgen Vollmer, Tamás Tél, Wolfgang Breymann, Equivalence of Irreversible Entropy Production in Driven Systems: An Elementary Chaotic Map Approach, Phys. Rev. Lett. 79 (1997), 2759–2762.
- 484. Michiko Yuri, Slow Decay of Correlations for Multi-Dimensional Intermittent Maps (1997), 10 pp..
- 485. Guosong Zhao, Solutions of Finite Type of Sine-Gordon Equation (1997), 15 pp...
- 486. Jörg Frauendiener, On an Integral Formula on Hypersurfaces in General Relativity, Classical Quantum Gravity, 13 pp. (to appear).
- 487. J. Tafel, D. Wójcik, Null Killing Vectors and Reductions of the Self-Duality Equations (1997), 12 pp..
- 488. Ivan Dimitrov, Ivan Penkov, Partially Integrable Highest Weight Modules (1997), 15 pp...
- 489. D. Burago, S. Ivanov, On Asymptotic Isoperimetric Constant of Tori (1997), 5 pp...
- 490. H. Narnhofer, W. Thirring, Spontaneously Broken Symmetries (1997), 19 pp..
- 491. D. Burago, S. Ferleger, A. Kononenko, Unfoldings and Global Bounds on the Number of Collisions for Generalized Semi-Dispersing Billiards (1997), 14 pp..
- 492. Ivan Dimitrov, Olivier Mathieu, Ivan Penkov, On the Structure of Weight Modules (1997), 15 pp..
- 493. Rodolfo Gambini, Jerzy Lewandowski, Donald Marolf, Jorge Pullin, On the Consistency of the Constraint Algebra in Spin Network Quantum Gravity (1997), 9 pp..
- 494. Jan Kwiatkowski, Inverse Limit of M-cocycles and Applications (1997), 19 pp..
- 495. Alexander V. Sobolev, Absolute Continuity of the Periodic Magnetic Schrödinger Operator (1997), 29 pp..
- 496. Michel Dubois–Violette, $d^N\!=\!\!0$ (1997), 54 pp..
- 497. Klaus Schmidt, On Joint Recurrence (1997), 6 pp..
- 498. Dirk Schlingemann, From Euclidean Field Theory to Quantum Field Theory (1997), 35 pp..
- 499. H.J. Borchers, On Poincaré Transformations and the Modular Group of the Algebra Associated with a Wedge (1997), 7 pp..

- 500. M. Hoffmann–Ostenhof, T. Hoffmann–Ostenhof, N. Nadirashvili, On the Multiplicity of Eigenvalues of the Laplacian on Surfaces (1997), 7 pp..
- 501. K.-H. Rehren, Spin-Statistics and CPT for Solitons (1997), 10 pp..
- 502. V.G. Danilov, G.A. Omel'yanov, Truncation of a Chain Hugoniot-type Conditions for Shock Waves and its Justification for the Hopf Equation (1997), 35 pp..
- 503. Anthony Manning, Klaus Schmidt, Common Homoclinic Points of Commuting Toral Automorphisms (1997), 9 pp..
- 504. Viviane Baladi, Mirko Degli Esposti, Stefano Isola, Esa Järvenpää, Antti Kupiainen, The Spectrum of Weakly Coupled Map Lattices, J. des Mathématiques Pures et Appliquées, 50 pp. (to appear).
- 505. R. Steinbauer, Geodesics and Geodesic Deviation for Impulsive Gravitational Waves (1997), 22 pp..
- 506. Dmitri Alekseevsky, Andreas Kriegl, Mark Losik, Peter W. Michor, Lifting Smooth Curves over Invariants for Representations of Compact Lie Groups (1997), 15 pp..
- 507. R. Beig, "Special" TT-tensors (1997), 9 pp..
- 508. M. Nedeljkov, S. Pilipović, Approximate Solutions to a Linear Dirichlet Problem with Singular Coefficients (1997), 15 pp..
- 509. Abhay Ashtekar, Jerzy Lewandowski, Quantum Theory of Geometry II: Volume operators (1997), 25 pp..
- A. Ashtekar, J. Baez, A. Corichi, K. Krasnov, Quantum Geometry and Black Hole Entropy (1997), 5 pp..
 Yu.V. Egorov, V.A. Kondratiev, On Asymptotic Behavior of Solutions of Semi-linear Parabolic Boundary Value Problems (1997), 45 pp..
- 512. Hebe A. Biagioni, Todor Gramchev, Multidimensional Kuramoto-Sivashinsky Type Equations: Singular Initial Data and Analytic Regularity (1997), 19 pp..
- 513. Nikolai Ya. Radyno, Some Questions of a General Spectral Theory of Banach Modules (1997), 15 pp..
- 514. Thomas Hoffmann–Ostenhof, Peter W. Michor, Nikolai Nadirashvili, Bounds on the Multiplicity of Eigenvalues for Fixed Membranes (1997), 14 pp..
- 515. Edward Malec, Niall Ó Murchadha, Tadeusz Chmaj, Spherical Scalar Waves and Gravity Red Shift and Backscattering (1997), 16 pp..
- 516. Robert Low, Stable Singularities of Wave Fronts in General Relativity (1997), 6 pp..
- 517. Abhay Ashtekar, Alejandro Corichi, Monica Pierri, Geometry in Color Perception (1997), 14 pp..
- 518. T.R. Field, R.J. Low, Causal Relations via Linking in Twistor Space (1997), 12 pp..
- 519. A.N. Starkov, First Cohomology Group, Mixing, and Minimal Sets of Commutative Group of Algebraic Actions on Torus (1997), 8 pp..
- 520. Zoltán Perjés, George Sparling, The Abstract Twistor Space of the Schwarzschild Space-Time (1997), 9 pp..

Till February 1998

- 521. L.J. Mason, J.P. Nicolas, Global Results for the Rarita-Schwinger Equations and Einstein Vacuum Equations (1998), 24 pp..
- 522. D.C. Robinson, Chiral Actions and Einstein's Vacuum Equations (1998), 15 pp..
- 523. D.V. Alekseevsky, Isotropy Representation of Flag Manifolds (1998), 12 pp..
- 524. Jacques Lafontaine, A Remark About Static Space Times (1998), 6 pp..
- 525. L.K. Hadjiivanov, A.P. Isaev, O.V. Ogievetsky, P.N. Pyatov, I.T. Todorov, Hecke Algebraic Properties of dynamical R-Matrices. Application to Related Quantum Matrix Algebras (1998), 28 pp..
- 526. Frank Leitenberger, Quantum Theory of the Projective Line, J. Math. Phys., 25 pp. (to appear).
- 527. M. P. Owen, A Riemannian Off-Diagonal Heat Kernel Bound for Uniformly Elliptic Operators (1998), 29 pp..
- 528. Christian D. Jäkel, Decay of Spatial Correlations in Thermal States (1998), 13 pp..
- 529. Detlev Buchholz, Christian D. Jäkel, The Relation between KMS-States for Different Temperatures (1998), 27 pp..

List of seminars and colloquia

- P. Zoller: Quantencomputer mit Methoden der Quantenphysik, 09.01.
- D. Rudolph: Restricted Orbit Equivalence I, 09.01.
- D. Rudolph: Restricted Orbit Equivalence II, 14.01.
- D. Rudolph: Restricted Orbit Equivalence III, 16.01.
- E. Glasner: The Pinsker Factor of a Product System, 28.08.
- K. Schmidt: Markov Partitions and Homoclinic Points , 22.01.
- K. Park: Directional Subdynamics, 20.01.
- A. Stepin: New Progress in Billiards, 21.01.
- Y. Pesin: Spatio-Temporal Chaos in Coupled Map Lattices I: Finite Dimensional Chaos, 23.01.
- Y. Pesin: Spatio-Temporal Chaos in Coupled Map Lattices II: Infinite-Dimensional Chaos, 30.01.
- T. Hudetz: Quantum Dynamical Entropies and the Direction of Time, 31.01.
- J. Thouvenot: Joinings within the class of proceeds which satisfy the weak-Pinsker property, 29.01.

- A. Stepin: Billiard limits, scattering and isospectrality, 28.01.
- S. Ferenczi : Notions of complexity for dynamical systems, 31.01.
- E. Malec: The Cauchy problem for the self-gravitating scalar field, 13.02.
- B. Schmidt: Vacuum spacetimes with toroidal null infinities, 19.02.
- G. Margulis: Flows on Homogeneous Spaces and Diophantine Approximation on Manifolds, 26.02.
- M. Lemanczyk: Factors of Gaussian Dynamical Systems, 06.03.
- N. Bogolubov: Exact results for models of four fermion interactions, 13.03.
- M. Herzlich: A Penrose-type inequality for black hole spacetimes, 27.03.
- A. Fischer: Hamiltonian Reduction of Einstein's Equations of General Relativity, 01.04.
- P. Gauduchon: A geometrical construction of Kerr-Schild spaces, 02.04.
- V. Jones: A survey of subfactors, 08.04.
- E. Lieb: Stability of Matter, 10.04.
- A. Zeilinger: Experimenting in Hilbert Space with Photons, 10.04.
- V. Jones: Planar Algebras, 10.04.
- K. Gawedzki: Manybody type problems in a model of turbulence, 10.04.
- T. Ward: Dynamical systems attached to S-integers, 08.04.
- V. Moncrief: The long-time existence problem for cosmological spacetimes, 09.04.
- T. Newman: Lorentzian structures on asymptotically flat space-times, 09.04.
- J. Bourguignon: The Geometry of Killing Spinors, 09.04.
- P. Tod: D'Atri Spaces, 09.04.
- L. Mason: The global structure of algebraically special space times, 11.04.
- P. Nurowski: A formulation of Einstein's Equations on a bundle of null directions, 15.04.
- S. Frittelli: General Relativity via Null Surfaces, 17.04.
- P. Chrusciel: Uniqueness of the Trautman-Bondi Mass, 18.04.
- T. Field: Quantum Causality, 18.04.
- N. O'Murchadha: Slicing Schwarzschild Spacetimes, 23.04.
- R. Beig: Impulsive Initial Data, 24.04.
- J. Bicak: Robinson Trautman Spacetimes, 30.04.
- B. Lemmens: Nonexpanding maps and rigid sets in R , 13.05.
- M. Vervoort: Reinforced random walks on ladders , 14.05.
- C. Radin: Dynamical Invariants of Tilings, 21.05.
- V. Sós: Order, disorder and what is between, 03.06.
- K. Johnson: Beta shifts corresponding to maximal elements in minimal sets, 23.05.
- N. Priebe: The Derived Voronoï tiling: a tool for detecting hierarchy in tiling dynamical systems, 23.05.
- M. Keane: The essence of the law of large numebers, 27.05.
- K. Shelton: Ergodic properties of Erdős measures, 28.05.
- J. Seke: Solution of the renormalization problem in nonretalivistic QED, 27.05.
- K. Petersen: The Future, the Past, and What May or May Not Be Between, 04.06.
- S. Tuncel: Classification of Markov Endomorphisms, 18.06.
- R. Penrose, FRS: Science and the Mind, 18.06.
- I. Robinson: Algebraically Special Space-Times and Complex Methods in General Relativity: A Reminiscence, 05.06.
- S. Merkulov: Twistor Solution of the Holonomy Problem, 13.06.
- S. Merkulov: Quantum Cohomology as an Integrable System, 12.06.
- R. Penrose: Space-Time Interpretation of Twistor Surfaces, 17.06.
- N. Haydn: Convergence of the transfer operator for rational maps, 24.06.
- R. Penrose: Twistor Approach to the Einstein Equations, 19.06.
- A. Trautman: Complex Structures in Physics, 20.06.
- N. O'Murchadha: Spherical scalar waves and gravity, 25.06.
- G. Sparling: CR-structures and twistor theory, 26.06.
- J. Nicolas: General Relativity and Weighted Sobolev Spaces, 01.07.
- L. Mason: The Rarita-Schwinger Equations and the Einstein Equations, 30.06.
- J. Beem: Cauchy Horizon Stability and Differentiability, 02.07.
- E. Robinson, Jr.: The Krieger representation theorem for a class of multidimensional shifts of finite type, 30.06.
- D. Petrina: Justification of derivation of the Boltzmann equation, 27.06.
- G. Sparling: CR-structures and twistor theory, part II, 27.06.
- G. Sparling: CR-structures and twistor theory part III, 30.06.
- G. Sparling: CR-structures and twistor theory part IV, 02.07.
- L. Szabados: Quasilocal Energies, 01.07.
- M. Przanowski: On Hermite-Einstein Space Times Part I, 03.07.
- M. Przanowski: On Hermite-Einstein Space Times Part II, 04.07.
- M. Smorodinsky: Standard and non-standard processes, 10.07.
- Y. Kifer: Computations in chaotic dynamics via random perturbations, 03.07.
- D. Lind: Milnor's Entropy Geometry and Algebraic -actions, 02.07.
- P. Kobak: A Lorentzian analogue of the Eells-Salamon construction, 03.07.
- J. Armstrong: Almost Kähler Einstein Manifolds, 03.07.

- J. Hawkins: Lebesgue ergodicity versus hyperbolicity for rational maps of the sphere, 07.07.
- J. Barnes: Conservative Exact Rational Maps of the Sphere, 07.07.
- L. Koss: Analytic Bernoulli Maps of P^2 , 08.07.
- P. Strack: A classification of the Julia set of hyperbolic transcendental functions with polynomial Schwartzian derivative, 08.07.
- K. Eloranta: Six- and eight-vertex models on a bounded demain, 09.07.
- A. Iwanik: Ergodic properties of skew products over irrational rotations, 10.07.
- G. Choe: The first return time test of random number generators an application of Ornstein and Weiss's theorem , 21.07.
- A. del Junco: Simple automorphisms are disjoint from Gaussians, 17.07.
- S. Bezuglyi: Non-commutative entropy for Bogoliubov actions of the rational group, 18.07.
- R. Sharp: Correlation of closed geodesics on hyperbolic surfaces, 22.07.
- S. Williams: Applications of Symbolic Dynamics to Knot Theory, 21.07.
- D. Silver: Knots, Links and Shifts of Finite Type, 22.07.
- S. Bezuglyi: Orbit equivalence of Cantor systems and hyperfiniteness, 25.07.
- T. Hamachi: Homomorphisms of noncommutative Bernoulli schemes, 25.07.
- H. Nakada: Realizations of natural extensions associated to f-expansions, 29.07.
- S. Takahashi: Multifractal formalism for sofic measures and dimension spectra of self-affine sets, 30.07.
- J. Steif: Mixing Properties of the Generalized TT^1 process, 05.08.
- B. Kaminski: Some problems concerning invariant σ -algebras for dynamical systems, 07.08.
- M. Yuri: Thermodynamic Formalism for certain non hyperbolic maps, 12.08.
- J. Aaronson: Glaisher's transformation and the Poincaré series of C Z, 14.08.
- M. Jakobson: SRB measures for one-parameter families of non-hyperbolic transformations, 13.08.
- P. Major: On the ergodic theorem a counterexample, 14.08.
- W. Krieger: Subshifts and Semigroups, 25.08.
- P. Olver: Moving frames and differential invariants, 02.09.
- M. Boyle: The Kim Roush Counterexample to Williams Shift Equivalence Conjecture for Irreducible Matrices (Part 2), 27.08.
- D. Fiebig: Graphs, degree and entropy, 27.08.
- U. Fiebig: Factoring locally compact Markov shifts onto compact subshifts, 26.08.
- E. Glasner: On the Pinsker Factor of a Product System, 28.08.
- D. Buchholz: Local quantum physics at small and large spacetime scales, 04.09.
- D. Schlingemann: From Euclidean Field Theory to Quantum Field Theory, 05.09.
- S. Summers: Higher order representations of the canonical comunication relation, 08.09.
- I. Ojima: Overwiew of BRS symmetry, 11.09.
- H. Narnhofer: Spontaneous symmetry breaking, 16.09.
- C. Jäkel: The relation between KMS-states for different temperatures , 09.09.
- J. Roberts: How far can superselection theory be generalized, 17.09.
- J. Yngvason: Algebraic constructions of Wightman type fields, 18.09.
- S. Doplicher: The small scale structure of spacetime and quantum field theory, 19.09.
- A. Di Giacomo: The status of topology in lattice QCT, 17.09.
- M. Müger: Aspects of Group Symmetry in low dimensional quantum field theories, 24.09.
- H. Wiesbrock: String theory and C* algebras, 26.09.
- E. Wichmann: Local nets and causal structure in Minkowski spacetime, 23.09.
- V. Schomerus: Superselection analysis for W algebras, 10.10.
- K. Rehren: The critical Ising Model "Along the line" a QFT point of view, 13.10.
- D. Bridges: Constructive Aspects of Quantum Foundation: Quantum Logic and Gleason's Theorem, 09.10.
- I. Todorov: the R matrix approach to the W Z N W model, 16.10.
- B. Kuckert: Modular symetries in Minkowski space: recent results, 15.10.
- J. Schmeelk: Some wavelets transforms in a generalized Fock space, 17.10.
- F. Fidaleo: Operator Space Structures and the Split Property, 23.10.
- H. Balasin: Distributional E-M-tensor of maximally extended Kerr geometries, 24.10.
- R. Hermann: Methods of Cartan and Carathéodory, 03.11.
- T. Gramchev: Evolution PDEs with elliptic dissipative terms: singular initial data and analytic regularity, 04.11.
- J. Bona: Stability, instability and singularities in nonlinear, dispersive wave equations, 04.11.
- J. Vickers: Cosmic strings, weak singularities and distributional curvature in general relativity, 05.11.
- S. Pilipović: Local properties of Colombeau's generalized functions, 06.11.
- M. Hazewinkel: Multiparameter quantum groups and applications, 06.11.
- B. Keyfitz: Conservations laws with singular shocks, 06.11.
- R. Brout: The Concept of Time in General and in Cosmology in Particular, 20.11.
- H. Biagoni: On n-dimensional Kuramoto-Sivashinsky type equations, 07.11.
- M. Reissig: New results for hyperbolic equations with coefficients oscillating in time, 13.11.
- N. Radyno: Some questions of a general spectral theory of Banach modules, 18.11.
- Y. Radyno: General aproach to algebras of mnemofunctions, 18.11.
- E. Rosinger: Arbitrary Lie group actions on generalized functions, 13.11.
- D. Scarpalezos: Banach techniques in nonlinear elliptic Dirichlet problems in Colombeau theory, 19.11.

A. Antonevich: The Schrödinger equation with point interaction in an algebra of generalized functions, 18.11.

33

- M. Scialom: Stability an instability of solutions of dispersive models , 11.11.
- E. Rosinger: Thoughts and comments an generalized functions, 12.11.
- Y. Egorov: On blow-up solutions of semi-linear parabolic boundary value problems, 12.11.
- G. Omel'yanov: The problem of propagation of singularities and truncation of a chair of Hugoniot-type conditions for shock waves, 11.11.
- Y. Wang: Highly oscillatory shock waves, 10.11.
- O. Gues: Boundary layers in viscous perturbations of nonlinear hyperbolic systems, 10.11.
- J. Marti: $C \mathcal{E}_p$ sheaf structures and applications, 20.11.
- A. Delcroix: $C \mathcal{E}_p$ asymptotic algebras, extension principle and applications, 21.11.
- A. Bressan: Shift differentiability of the flow generated by a conservation law, 20.11.
- V. Valmorin: Generalized functions and multiplication of period hyperfunctions of one variable, 21.11.
- T. Todorov: An Introduction to Nonstandard Asymptotic Analysis, 21.11.
- H. Holden: Conservation laws with a random source, 24.11.
- F. Russo: A two space dimensional semilinear equation perturbed by a white noise, 25.11.
- B. Oksendal: An Introduction to white noise calculus with some PDE applications, 25.11.
- J. Rubio: Semi infinite programming and control theory, 26.11.
- B. Oksendal: Using white noise calculus to compute hedging strategies in finance, 27.11.
- H. Lange: Singular nonlinear Schrödinger equations, 27.11.
- I. Taimanov: "Periodic orbits in magnetics fields", 27.11.
- J. Uboe: Measurements of ordinary and stochastic differential equations, 03.12.
- F. Russo: Stochastic calculus with respect to finite quadratic variation process , 04.12.
- T. Zhang: On the small time behavior of Ornstein Uhlenbeck processes with unbounded linear drifts, 04.12.

List of all visitors in the year 1997

- Aaronson Jon, Tel-Aviv University, 08 06-08 22, SCH Abels Herbert, Universitaet Bielefeld, 30.01.-15.02.
- SCH Adams Scot, University of Minnesota, 03.02.-14.02.
- SCH
- Aigner Martin, FU Berlin, 07 15-07 18, KRA
- Albuquerque Paul, Universite Geneva, 08.02.-14.02. SCH
- Alexeevski Dmitri, Moscow, 01 01-01 11, 04 27-07 01, 11 02-12 31, MI
- Andersson Lars, Royal Institute of Technology, Sweden, 04 02-04 19, BE
- Antonevich Anatolij, Belarussian State University, 11 09-11 22, OGK
- Armstrong John, University of Oxford, 06 30-07 06, UNM
- Ashtekar Abhay, Pennsylvania State University, 06 09-06 20, AA
- Baez John C., University of California at Riverside, 06 14-06 23, AA
- Bailey Toby, University of Edinburgh, 03 22-04 05, UNM
- Ballmann Werner, Universitaet Bonn, 05.02.-10.02. SCH
- Barnes Julie, Western Carolina University 07 02-07 13, SCH
- Baumann Klaus, Universität Göttingen, 09 29-11 01, BYN
- Baumgärtel Helmut, Universität Potsdam , 09 30-10 05, BYN
- Beem John K., University of Missouri-Columbia, 06 24-07 06, UNM
- Benoist Yves, Universite Paris VII, 09.02.-15.02. SCH
- Besson Gerard, Universite Grendoble, 08.02.-15.02. SCH
- Bezuglyi Sergey, Kharkov, Ucraine, 07 14-07 27, SCH

- Biagioni Hebe de Azevedo, Campinas University, Sao Paulo, Brazil, 11 02-11 30, OGK
- Bičak Jiri, Charles University, Prague, 04 28-05 02, $_{\rm BE}$
- Bogolioubov Nicolai, Steclov Mathematical Institute, Moscow, 03 13-03 13, THI
- Bona Jerry, University of Texas, 11 03-11 15, OGK
- Borchers Hans-Jürgen, Universität Göttingen, 05 07-05 16, 09 16-11 14, BYN
- Borwein Jonathan, Simon Fraser University, Canada, 07 14-07 19, KRA
- Bourgignon Jean-Pierre, IHES, 04 07-04 10, BE
- Boyle Mike, University of Maryland Dept. of
- Mathematics, 08 20-08 29, SCH
- Bressan Alberto, International School for Advanced Studies, 11 17-11 22, OGK
- Bridges Douglas, University of Waikato, New Zealand, 10 09-10 09, MI
- Bros Jacques, Centre de Saclay, France, 09 09-10 04, BYN
- Brout Robert, University Libre de Bruxelles, 11 15-11 22, GRO
- Bruin Henk, Royal Institute of Technology, Sweden, 07 06-07 08, SCH
- Brunetti Romeo, Universita di Napoli, 09 17-09 28, BYN
- Buchholz Detlev, Universität Hamburg, 09 01-10 04, BYN
- Burger Marc, Universite Lausanne, 02.02.-15.02. SCH
- Cavallaro Stefano, Sissa, Trieste, 09 29-10 03, BYN
- Chaleyat-Maurel Mireille, University Paris V, 04 07-
- 04 09, MI
- Choe Geon Ho, Korea, 07 07-08 07, SCH
- Chrusciel Piotr, University of Tours, 04 16-05 01, 05 25-06 06, BE
- Conti Roberto, Roma, Italy, 09 24-10 04, BYN
- Cortés Vicente, Universität Bonn, 06 19-06 24, 11 28-12 03, MI

- Cotsakis Spiros, University of the Aegean, Greece, 04 14-04 19, BE
- Courtois Gilles, Ecole Polyechnique, Palaiseau, 08.02.-15.02. SCH
- D'Antoni Claudio, Universita di Roma "Tor Vergata", 09 29-10 12, BYN
- Dal'bo Francoise, Universite Rennes 1, 01.02.-07.02. SCH
- del Junco Andrés, University of Toronto, 07 12-07 19, SCH
- Delcroix Antoine, Antille-Guyane, 11 16-11 29, OGK
- Dickinson H., University of York, 07.02.-15.02. SCH
- Dickinson H., University of York, 07.02.-15.02.SCH
- Djapic Nenad, University of Novi Sad, Serbia, 10 15-10 31, OGK
- Doplicher Sergio, Universitá di Roma "La Sapienza", 09 02-09 06, BYN 09 15-10 04, BYN
- Dress Andreas, Universität Bielefeld, 07 15-07 18, KRA
- Dubois-Violette Michel, Universite Paris XI, 09 23-09 28, BYN
- Dunajski Maciej, University of Oxford, 07 05-07 12, UNM
- Dupont Serge, Universitaet Bonn, 02.02.-15.02. SCH
- Egorov Yuri, Université Paul Sabatier, Toulouse, 11 02-11 30, OGK
- Eloranta Kari, Helsinki University of Technology, 07 07-07 28, SCH
- Eskin Alex, University of Chicago, 02.02.-16.02. SCH
- Farb Benson, University of Chicago, 08.02.-15.02. SCH
- Feldman Jacob, University of Berkeley, 07 08-07 13, SCH
- Ferenczi Sebastien, Luminy, 01 26-02 05, SCH
- Feres Renato, University of Washington, 09.02.-14.02. SCH
- Ferleger Serge, Pennsylvania State University, 04.02.-15.02. SCH
- Fidaleo Francesco, Universita "Tor Vergata", 10 21-10 26, BYN
- Fiebig Ulf-Rainer, Universität Heidelberg, 08 20-08 29, SCH
- Fiebig Doris, Universität Heidelberg, 08 20-08 29, SCH
- Field Timothy, Stevenage, England, 04 02-04 30, UNM
- Fischer Arthur, University of California, 03 20-04 03, $_{\rm BE}$
- Foulon Patric, University of Strasbourg, 05.02.-15.02. SCH
- Frauendiener Jörg, Universität Tübingen, 04 07-04 20, UNM
- Fredenhagen Klaus, Universität Hamburg II, 09 19-10 02, BYN
- Friedrich Helmut, MPI Gravitationsphysik, Potsdam, 11 10-11 14, BE
- Frittelli Simonetta, University of Pittsburgh, 04 14-04 20, UNM
- Furstenberg Hillel, University of Hebrew, 02.02.-06.02. SCH
- Gambini Rodolfo, Montevideo, Uruguay, 06 12-06 15, AA
- Gao Yan, University of Yale, 03.02.-14.02. SCH
- Gauduchon Paul, CNRS-Ecole Polytechnique, 03 27-04 04, UNM
- Gentili Fausto, Universita di Bologna, 09 29-10 03, BYN

- Glasner Eli, Tel Aviv University, 01 27-01 29, 08 24-08 31, SCH
- Goldsheid Ilya, London, 02.02.-14.02. SCH
- Gramchev Todor, Universita di Cagliari, 10 22-11 19, OGK
- Gratus Jonathan, Université Paris VI, 09 30-10 04, BYN
- Grundling Hendrik, University of New South Wales, Australia, 05 01-06 27, BYN
- Gues Oliver, University of Nice, 11 02-11 16, OGK
- Guido Daniele, Universita di Roma "Tor Vergata", 09 30-10 19, BYN
- Guivarc'h Yves, University of Rennes, 03.02.-14.02. SCH
- Gutkin Eugene, University of Southern California, 03.02.-16.02. SCH
- Gutkin Eugene, University of Southern California, 06 07-06 15, SCH
- Guttmann Anthony, University of Melbourne, 07 14-07 19, KRA
- Ha Young-Hwa, Ajon University, South Korea, 07 07-07 12, SCH
- Haag Rudolf, Universität Hamburg, 09 16-09 22, 09 30-10 15, BYN
- Haiman Mark D., U.C. San Diego, 07 14-07 19, KRA
- Hamachi Toshihiro, Kyushu University, Japan, 07 17-08 19, SCH
- Hamenstaedt Ursula, University of Bonn, 09.02.-
- 15.02. SCH Harpe Pierre de la, Universite Geneva, 09.02.-15.02. SCH
- Hasselblatt Boris, Tufts University, 02 10-02 24, SCH
- Hawkins Jane, University of North Carolina, 07 01-07 14, SCH
- Haydn Nicolai T.A., University of South California, 06 15-06 30, SCH
- Hazewinkel Michiel, University Utrecht, 11 02-11 07, OGK
- Hermann Robert, MIT, Cambridge, 10 23-11 06, OGK
- Herzlich Marc, Ecole Polytechnique, 03 27-04 04, BE
- Hill C. Denson, Stony Brook, 03 23-03 30, 06 29-07 13, UNM
- Holden Helge, Norwegian Institute of Technology, 11 22-11 27, OGK
- Huggett Steven, University of Plymouth, 03 22-04 05, UNM
- Hurder Steve, University of Chicago, 09.02.-15.02. SCH $\,$
- Iozzi Alessandra, University of Maryland, 10.02.-14.02. SCH
- Iwanik Anzelm, Politechnika Wrocławska, 07 06-07 12, SCH
- Izeki Hiroyasu, Germany, 06.02.-13.02. SCH
- Jakobson Michael, University of Maryland, 08 08-08 15, SCH
- Johnson Aimee, Swarthmore College, 07 04-07 09, SCH
- Johnson Kimberly, University of North Carolina, 05 17-05 27, SCH
- Jones Vaughan, Univ. of Berkeley, 04 07-04 13, SCH
- Junker Wolfgang, MPI Gravitationsphysik, 09 29-
 - 10 04, BYN
- Jäkel Christian, Wien, 09 01-12 31, BYN
- Kaimanovich Vadim, University of Rennes, 03.02.-14.02. SCH

35

- Kaminski Brunon, Copernicus University, Toruń, 08 02-08 24, SCH
- Kashiwara Masaki, RIMS Kyoto University, 07 14-07 19, KRA
- Katok Anatole, Pennsylvania State University , 01 01-03 02, 07 29-08 02, SCH
- Katok Anatole, Pennsylvania State University, 17.12.-02.03. SCH
- Katok Svetlana, Pennsylvania State University , 01 01-03 02, 07 29-08 02, SCH
- Katok Svetlana, Pennsylvania State University, 17.12.-02.03. SCH
- Kay Bernard S., University of York , 09 12-10 10, $$\mathrm{BYN}$$
- Keane Michael, Centrum voor Wiskunde, 05 05-05 30, SCH
- Keyfitz Barbara Lee, University of Houston, 11 03-11 16, OGK
- Kifer Yuri, Hebrew University , 06 29-07 06, SCH $\,$
- Kim Young-One, Sejong University, South-Korea, 07 16-07 31, SCH
- Kleinbock Dmitry, University of IAS, 03.02.-15.02. SCH
- Klingler Bruno , Ecole Polytechnique, Palaiseau, 02.02.-15.02. SCH
- Knieper Gerhard, Universitaet Leipzig, 02.02.-15.02. SCH
- Kobak Piotr Z., Uniwersytet Jagielloński, Krakow, 06 19-07 12, UNM
- Kopczyński Wojciech, University of Warsaw, 04 02-04 21, UNM
- Kornfeld Isaac, North Dakota State University, 05 14-05 19, SCH
- Koss Lorelei, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill, 07 02-07 14, SCH
- Krasnov Kirill, Pennsylvania State University, 06 08-06 23, AA
- Krieger Wolfgang, Universität Heidelberg, 08 18-08 29, SCH
- Kuckert Bernd, Universität Hamburg, 09 29-10
 26, $${\rm BYN}$$
- Kunhardt Walter, Universität Göttingen, 09 30-10 04, BYN
- Kwiatkowski Jan, Uniw. Kopernika, Torun, Polen, 02 16-02 25, SCH
- Köster Sören, Aachen, 09 29-10 03, BYN
- Lafontaine Jacques, Université Montpellier, 04 14-04 24, BE
- Landsman Nicolaas Pieter, Universiteit van Amsterdam , 09 22-10 04, BYN
- Lange Horst, Universität Köln, 11 24-12 01, OGK
- Langmann Edwin, KTH, Stockholm, Sweden, 01 02-01 04, GRO
- Ledrappier Francois, Ecole Polytechnique, Palaiseau, 02.02.-14.02. SCH
- Lee Jungseob, Ajou University, South-Korea, 07 16-07 31, SCH
- Leeb Bernhard, Universitaet Bonn, 01.02.-17.02. SCH
- Leitenberger Frank, Universität Leipzig, 12
 12-12 31, GRO GRO 59.000.–
- Lemańczyk Mariusz, Copernicus University, Torun, Poland, 02 10-03 09, SCH
- Lemmens Bas, University of Amsterdam, 05 12-05 16, SCH
- Levesley Jason, University of York, 07.02.-14.02. SCH

- Lewandowski Jerzy, Warsaw University, 04 14-04 27, UNM 06 09-06 22, AA
- Liardet Pierre, Uni de Provence CMI, 02 17-02 28, 03 19-03 22, SCH
- Lieb Elliott, Princeton University, 04 09-04 18, THI
- Lind Douglas, University of Washington , 06 19-07 22, SCH
- Losik Mark V. , Saratov State University, 10 26-12 20. MI
- Low Robert, Coventry University, 03 31-04 14, UNM
- Lutz Matthias, Universität Göttingen , 09 30-10 05, BYN
- Madore John, University of Paris Sud, 05 09-05 11, THI
- Major Péter, Hungarian Academy of Sciences, 08 09-08 15, SCH
- Malec Edward Janusz, Jagiellonian University, Krakow, 02 08-02 15, BE
- Margulis Gregory, University of Yale, 02.02.-28.02. SCH
- Marolf Donald, Syracuse University, 06 10-06 15, AA Marti Jean-André, Université Antilles Guyane, 11 16-
- 11 29, OGK Mason Lionel, University of Oxford, 03 25-04 13, 06 23-07 05, UNM
- Masur Howard, University of Chicago, 08.02.-14.02. SCH
- Matsui Tako, Kyushu University, 09 29-10 05, BYN
- Mendes-France Michel, Math. Universite Bordeaux, 07 14-07 19, KRA
- Merkulov Sergei, Russian Academy of Sciences, 06 04-06 16, UNM
- Miglbauer Hans, TU-Graz, 09 29-10 03, BYN
- Mintchev Mihail, Universitá di Pisa, 08 04-08 30, BYN
- Moncrief Vincent, Yale University, 02 05-05 03, BE
- Morchio Giovanni, Universitá di Pisa, 09 16-10 03, BYN
- Moschella Ugo, University of Milan, 09 04-10 05, BYN
- Moskaliuk Stepan, NAS Ukraine, 01 27-02 02, 03 17-03 23, 12 20-12 22, THI
- Mozes Shahar, Hebrew University, 02.02.-15.02. SCH
- Müger Michael, Universita di Roma "Tor Vergata", 09 16-10 10, BYN
- Müller Franz, ETH Hoenggerberg , 03 24-03 29, UNM
- Nadirashvilli Nikolai, MIT, Moscow, 01 29-02 10, 03 03-03 05, HO1
- Nakada Hitoshi, Keio University, Japan, 07 21-08 22, SCH
- Nedeljkov Marko, University of Novi Sad, Serbia, 10
 13-12 20, OGK
- Nelson Jeanette, University of Turin, 04 15-04 20, BE Newman Ezra Ted, niversity of Pittsburgh, 04 07-04 21, UNM
- Nicolas Jean-Philippe, Bordeaux 1 University, 06 22-07 06. UNM
- Nitica Viorel, University of Indiana, 03.02.-10.02. SCH
- Nurowski Pawel, Warsaw University, 03 26-04 06, 04 14-04 20, 06 14-07 13, UNM
- Oberguggenberger Michael, Universität Innsbruck, 10 13-12 20, OGK
- Ogievetsky Oleg, MPI für Physik, 10 11-10 20, GRO
- Oh Hee, University of Yale, 02.02.-15.02. SCH
- Ojima Izumi, Kyoto University, 09 02-10 16, BYN

- Oksendal Bernt, University of Oslo , 11 23-11 30, OGK
- Olver Peter, University of Minnesota, 08 31-09 04, OGK
- Omelýanov Georgii, Moscow State Univ., 11 02-11 14, OGK
- Ó Murchadha Niall, University College Cork, 01 21-03 02, 03 13-07 01, BE
- Owen Mark Philip, King's College London, 01 01-12 31, EU, HO
- Park Kyewon Koh, Ajon University, South-Korea, 01 09-01 29, 07 16-08 04, SCH
- Penrose Roger, University of Oxford, 06 12-06 19, UNM
- Perjés Zoltán, Budapest, 07 11-07 15, UNM
- Pesin Yakov, Pennsylvania State University , 01 15-02 02, SCH
- Petersen Karl, University of North Carolina, 05 16-06 14, SCH
- Petrina Dmitri, Ucraian Academy of Sciences, 06 24-07 08, THI
- Petz Dénes, Technical University of Budapest, 11 26-11 26, MI
- Piacitelli Gherardo, Italy, 09 29-10 04, BYN
- Picaud Jean-Claude, France, 03.02.-14.02. SCH
- Pilipović Stevan, University of Novi Sad, Serbia, 11 02-11 29, OGK
- Pollicott Mark, University of Manchester, 02.02.-14.02. SCH
- Popov Vladimir L., Moscow State Technical University, 12 07-12 10, MI
- Priebe Natalie, University of North Carolina , 05 16-05 29, SCH
- Przanowski Maciej, Technical University of Łódź, 06 28-07 09, UNM
- Pullin Jorge, Pennsylvania State University, 06 08-06 14, AA
- Qian Nantian, University of Yale, 03.02.-14.02. SCH
- Radin Charles, University of Texas , 05 17-05 25, SCH
- Radyno Yakov, Belarussian State University, 11 09-11 22, OGK
- Radyno Nikolai, Belarussian Academy of Science , 1109-1122, OGK
- Rehren Karl-Henning, Universität Hamburg, 09 29-10 18, BYN
- Reissig Michael, TU Bergakademie Freiberg, 11 11-11 21, OGK
- Roberts John, Elias, Universitá di Roma " Tor Vergata ", 09 02-10 03, BYN
- Robinson Arthur, George Washington University, 06 23-07 05, SCH
- Robinson David, King's College London, 06 08-07 05, UNM
- Robinson Ivor, University of Texas, 06 01-06 08, UNM
- Rosinger Elemér, University of Pretoria, 10 15-12 15, OGK
- Rozenblioum Grigori, Göteborg University, 01 21-03 03, HO1
- Rudolph Daniel J., University of Maryland, 01 01-01 21, SCH
- Ruffing Andreas, MPI Physik, München, 10 22-10 24, HO1
- Russo Francesco, Villetaneuse, France, 11 25-12 23, OGK

- Scarpalezos Dimitris, Université Paris 7, 11 10-11 23, OGK
- Schlesinger Karl-Georg, University of Wuppertal, 12 01-12 31, GRO GRO
- Schlingemann Dirk, 04 17-04 25, 05 03-12 31, BYN
- Schmeelk John, VCU Richmond, Virginia, 10 10-10 20, OGK
- Schmeling Joerg, Berlin, 30.01.-07.02. SCH
- Schmidt Bernd, MPI-Astrophysik, 02 18-03 03, BE
- Schomerus Volker, Universität Hamburg, 10 06-10 12, BYN
- Schroer Bert, FU Berlin, 09 23-10 12, BYN
- Scialom Marcia, Campinas State Univ., Brazil, 11 01-11 30, OGK
- Seiler Erhard, MPI Physik, München, 09 30-10 11, BYN
- Seke Josip, TU Wien, 05 27-05 27, THI
- Shah Nimish A., Institute for Advanced Study, Princeton, 03.02.-15.02. SCH
- Sharp Richard, University of Manchester , 07 13-07 26, SCH
- Shelton Kennan, University of North Carolina , 05 16-05 29, SCH
- Silver Daniel, University of South Alabama, 07 16-08 13, SCH
- Simion Rodica, George Washington University, 07 15-07 20, KRA
- Slovák Jan, Masaryk University Brno, CZ, 08 11-08 12, CAP
- Smorodinsky Meir, Tel Aviv University, 06 21-07 19, SCH
- Soifer Gregory, Bar-Ilan University, 02.02.-14.02. SCH
- Solomiak Michael, The Weizmann Institute of Science, 01 20-03 02, HO1
- Souček Vladimir, Charles University, Prague, 07 28-08 01, CAP
- Sparling George, University of Pittsburgh , 06 22-07 15, UNM
- Starkov Alexander, All-Russian Electronical Institute, Istra, 02.02.-14.02. SCH
- Starkov Alexander, Moscow Region, 12 01-12 28, SCH
- Steif Jeffrey, Chalmers University of Technology, 07 30-08 17, SCH
- Steinmann Othmar, Universität Bielefeld, 09 12-10 08, BYN
- Stepin Anatoli, Moscow State University , 01 17-01 30, 12 16-12 31, SCH
- Stiller Michael, Universität Hamburg, 09 30-10 04, BYN
- Stora Raymond, LAPP Annecy, 09 22-10 05, BYN
- Strack Paul, University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, 07 02-07 14, SCH
- Strocchi Franco, Scuola Normale Sup., 09 16-10 03, BYN
- Summers Stephen, University of Florida , 09 03-10 14, BYN
- Szabados László, Benő, Hungarian Academy of Sciences, 03 24-03 27, 04 03-04 16, 06 23-06 29, BE, 06 30-07 06, UNM
- Sós Veronika, Hungarian Academy of Sciences, 06 03-06 03, SCH
- Tafel Jacek, University of Warsaw, 05 20-06 18, 07 03-07 19, UNM
- Taimanov Iskander, Novosibirsk, 11 25-11 30, SCH

- Takahashi Satoshi, Osaka University , 07 23-08 11, $_{\rm SCH}$
- Thouvenot Jean-Paul, Université Paris 6, 01 16-02 14, SCH
- Tod Kenneth Paul, University of Oxford, 04 07-04 20, UNM
- Todorov Ivan, Bulgarian Academy of Sciences, 10 06-11 04, BYN
- Todorov Todor, Calif. Polytechnic, San Luis Obispo, 11 20-12 21, OGK
- Tomanov George, Universite Lyon, 02.02.-14.02. SCH Torok Andrew, University of Princeton, 03.02.-08.02. SCH
- Trautman Andrzej, University of Warsaw, 06 16-07 05, UNM
- Trebels Stephan, Universität Göttingen, 09 29-10 02, BYN
- Tuncel Selim, University of Washington, 05 26-06 22, SCH
- Uboe Jan, Oslo, 12 01-12 07, OGK
- Valmorin Vincent, Université Antilles Guyane, 11 16-11 29, OGK
- Velani S.L., Imperial College, London, 09.02.-16.02. SCH
- Verch Rainer, Universität Göttingen, 09 23-10 11, BYN
- Vershik Anatoly, Russian Academy of Sciences, St. Petersburg, 03 31-04 06, SCH, 07 15-07 20, KRA
- Vervoort Marco, University of Amsterdam, 05 12-05 16, SCH

- Vickers James, University of Southampton, 11 03-11 09, OGK
- Volny Dalibor, Charles University, 04 20-04 27, SCH
- Wang Ya-Guang, Shanghei Jiao Tong University, 11 01-12 02, OGK
- Ward Thomas, University of East Anglia, 04 01-04 15, SCH
- Wichmann Eyvind H., University Berkeley, 09 16-10 18, BYN
- Wiesbrock Hans-Werner, FU Berlin, 09 16-10 03, BYN
- Wilkinson Amie, Northwestern University, 08.02.-15.02. SCH
- Williams Susan, University of South Alabama, 07 16-08 13, SCH
- Wollenberg Manfred, Universtät Leipzig, 09 30-10 10, BYN
- Woodhouse Nicholas M.J., University of Oxford, 06 23-07 05, UNM
- Yokura Shoji, University of Kagoshima, Japan, 07 17-09 05, MI
- Yue Chengbo, Pennsylvania State University, 06.02.-11.02. SCH
- Yuri Michiko, Sapporo University , 08 03-08 25, SCH
- Zhang Tusheng, University of Henan, China, 12 02-12 07, OGK
- Zhao Guosong, China, 01 01-09 30, MI
- Zoller Peter, Universität Innsbruck, 01 08-01 11, GRO